MICHIGAN MISSION
l Our mission is to develop today’s

d. workforce and tomorrow's economy

SOUTHEAST

by engaging employers, jobseekers, and partners.

JOINT BOARD MEETING
SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN CONSORTIUM BOARD
AND
MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING
March 14, 2018, 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 noon

Chelsea Comfort Inn Village Conference Center
1645 Commerce Park Drive, Chelsea, M| 48118

AGENDA
1. Call to order - Southeast Michigan Consortium Board - KZ Bolton, Chair

2. Cadll to order —Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
- Marcus James, Chair

3. Roll Call - Southeast Michigan Consortium Board
4. Roll Call - Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

5. Infroductions
6. Call to the Public (both boards) — KZ Bolton

7. Approval of the Agenda
» KZBolton - Southeast Michigan Consortium Board

e  Marcus James — Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

8. Approval of Minutes —KZ Bolton {Consortium Board)
. January 29, 2018 Southeast Michigan Consortium Board Minutes

9. Consideration of Consent Agenda fems -Marcus James (Workforce Board)
a. January 10, 2018 Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board Minutes
b. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION (WDB) 17-44

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TALENT INVESTMENT AWARD OF SKILLED

TRADES TRAINING FUNDS (STTF) FOR FY 2018, OCTOBER 1, 2017 THROUGH
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 FOR THE MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE

DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Michigan Works! Southeast is an Equal Opportunity Employer/Program | Auxiliary aids and other accommodations are available
upon request to individuals with disabilities | Supported by the State of Michigan | Proud Partner of the American Job Center
Network | Michigan Relay dial 7-1-1 | Toll-free telephone number 1-800-285-WORK {9675)



WDB RESOLUTION 17-47

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND
OPPORTUNITY ACTION {WIOA} INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING (IWT) FUNDS
FOR JONESVILLE TOOL AND MANUFACTURING IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,423
wDB RESOLUTION 17-48

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA IWT FUNDS FOR MMI
ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $21.015

WDB RESOLUTION 17-49

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA IWT FUNDS FOR CASTER
CONCEPTS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,425

WDB RESOLUTION 17-50

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 IWT FUNDS FOR EBERBACH IN THE
AMOUNT OF $14,652

WDB RESOLUTION 17-51

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 IWT FUNDS FOR MELLING TOOL
COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT QF 310,745

WDB RESOLUTION 17-52

A RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WITH WORKFORCE INTELLIGENT NETWOR (WIN)

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION 17-55

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR FORTECH PRODUCTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,800

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION 17-56

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
(IWT) FUNDS FOR ST. JOSEPH MERCY HOSPITAL IN THE AMOUNT OF $1.816

10. Presentations:

Kristin Hunt, Audit, Plante Moran

Phil Santer, Ann Arbor SPARK, GAAR

Robert Tebo, Robert Tebo & Associates

Charlie Penner, Small Business Development Center-
Washienaw Community College

Laura Hoehn, Livingsion Educational Service Agency

11. Resolutions for Consideration of the Workforce Development Board (WDB) — Marcus

James
a.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD {WDB) RESOLUTION 17-53

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ADDITIONAL FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF

$15,500 FOR SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER

WDB RESOLUTION 17-57

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CAREER AND EDUCATIONAL ADVISORY
COUNCIL {CEAC) MEMBERSHIP FOR MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST

WDB RESOLUTION 17-58

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF WORKFORCE INNOVATION
AND OPPORTUNITY ACTION {WIOA) RELEASE OF A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
[RFP) FOR SPECIALIZED YOUTH SERVICES



d. WDB RESOLUTION 17-59
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF WIOA RFP FOR
SPECIALIZED BUSINESS SERVICES-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

12. Resolutions for Consideration of the Southeast Michigan Consorfium Board (CB) — K2
Bolton

a. CB RESOLUTION 17-21
A RESOLUTION APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
2017 MICHIGAN WORKS! AGENCY

b. CBRESOLUTION 17-22
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE IMPEMENATION OF A SALARY STRUCTURE
AND COMPENSATION POLICY FOR MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST

13. Resolutions for Consideration by both the Consortium Board- KZ Bolton and the
Workforce Development Board (WDB) - Marcus James

a. CB Resolution 17-20
A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID
RESPONSE-CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $6,131

WDB RESOLUTION 17-54
A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID RESPONSE
CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,131

14. Committee Report
a. Executive Committee Report - Marcus James - Chair
-February 7, 2018 Executive Committee Meeting
-March 7, 2018 Executive Committee Meeting
Employer Services - Richord Currie, Chair
Job Seeker Services — Leann Wilt, Chair
Career and Educational Advisory Council (CEAC) - Kevin Oxley, Chair
Compliance, Finance and Operations {(CFO) - Lynn Matzen, Chair

©a0 T

15. New Business - KZ Bollon Consortium Board
a. Workforce Development Board Member Vacancies to Fill
i. Vacancy - Washtenaw County -Business/Private Sector -Swatee
Kulkarni, Executive VP, GDI Info Tech Inc.
Nominee Information.

s Ann Arbor/Ypsilanti Regional Chamber
Shawn Planko, Engineering Manager, Expedia

e Adrian Area Chamber of Commerce
Naomi Lolley, Owner, imInBiz; Stephanie Dinius, Financial Service
Officer, GreenStone Farm; Pat Deere, Relationship Marketing,
Send Out Cards; Lauri Know, Owner, Knox Accounting & Tax
Service

3/14/18 corrected



16,

17.

18.

19.

No nomingafions received from Jackson County Chamber, Hillsdale County
Chamber and Howell County Chamber

ii. Vacancy - Washtenaw County, Adult Education/Higher Education-Dr.
Timothy lackson, Adull Educalion Manager, Washlenaw 15D
Nominee Information
« Jackson Couniy ISD; Kevin Schwemmin, Employer Relations
Specialist, Boker College, Jockson
¢ Moit Communily College: Roberi Matthews, Assoc. VP Workforce
Development, Mott Community College
e Washienaw County ISD; Dr. Rose Bellanca, President, Washtenaw
Community College [WCC); Alternale/Dr. Michelle Mueller,
WCC, Vice Presideni of Economic, Community & College
Development
No nominations received from Jackson College, Lenawee ISD, Hillsdale
ISD, Livingston I1SD

iii. Aternates for Workforce Development Board Member

8oard Member/Dr. Scolt Menzel, Superiniendent, Washienaw 15D
Alternate, Dr. Timothy Jackson, Washtenaw ISD, Adult Education Grants
Manager

Discussion ltems {both boards)
a. Governor's Talent Investment Board (GTIB) Updale — Marcus James

Other ltems
a. Comments from Chair (both boards)
b. Comments from Director

o Direcior’'s Repori

Public Comment - KZ Bolton {both boards)

Adjournment of the Joint Board Meeting of the Southeast Michigan Consortium
and the Michigan Workst Southeast Workforce Development Board

« KZBolion, Southeast Michigan Consorlium Board

« Marcus James, Michigan Works! Souiheast Workforce Development Board



8. Approval of Minutes —KZ Bolion ({Consortium Board)
Q. January 29, 2018 Southeast Michigan Consortium Board Minutes



Southeast Michigan Consoriium Board Meeting
January 29, 2018, 10:00 am - 11:30 am
Chelsea Comfort Inn, Village Conference Center
1645 Commerce Park Drive, Chelsea, Ml

Southeast Michigan Conscrtium Board Preseni:

Karol KZ Bolton, Chair Lenawee County Commissioner
Ruth Brown Hillsdale County Commissioner
Dennis Dolan, Vice Chair Livingston County Commissioner
Julie Games Hillsdale County Commissioner
Daniel Mahoney Jackson County Commiissioner
Conan Smith Washienaw County

Chris Wittenbach Lenawee County Commissioner

Southeast Michigan Consortium Board Absent:

William Green Livingston County Commissioner
Sarah Lightner Jackson County Commissioner
Ruth Ann Jamnick Washtenaw County Commissioner

Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
Marcus James, Chair

Staff
Bill Sleight Michigan Works! Southeast
Nicole Bell Michigan Works! Southeast

Maggie Flaherty  Michigan Works! Southeast

1. Callto order
KZ Bolton, Vice Chair called the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board meeting to
order at 10:06 am.

2. Roll Call
Quorum not Present

3. Iniroductions
4. Audited Financial Statement form Plante Moran
Bill Sleight reviewed the Plante Moran audited financial statements.

Discussion.

3. Bill Sleight provided a report on Compensation Committee.
Discussion.

10:21 a.m. Quorum Present Commissioner Conan Smith present



6. Election of Chair

Call for nominations for Chair.

MOTION: Chris Wittenbach moved to nominate KZ Bolton as Chair of the Southeast
Michigan Consortium Board.

SUPPORT: Julie Games

Call for any other nominations.

Call for any other nominations.

Call for any other nominations.

No additional nominations.

MOTION CARRIED

7. Election of Vice-Chair

Call for nominations for Vice-Chair
Discussion.

MOTION: Conan Smith moved to nominate Dennis Dolan, Vice-Chair of the Southeast
Michigan Consortium Board
SUPPORT: Julie Games

Call for any other nominations
Call for any other nominations
Call for any other nominations

No additional nominations
MOTION CARRIED

8. Approvol of Agenda

KZ Bolton call for a motion {o approve the Agenda.
MOTION; Conan Smith moved to approve the Agenda.
SUPPORT: Dennis Dolan

MOTION CARRIED

9. Approval of Minutes

KZ Bolton call for a motion to approve the December 18, 2017 Consortium Board
Meeting Minutes

MOTION: Dennis Dolan moved to approve the December 18, 2017 Consortium Board
Meeting Minutes

SUPPORT: Chris Wittenbach

MOTION CARRIED

Q. Call to the Pubilic
KZ Bolton call o the Public. Colt fo the Public. Call to the Public.
No Public Comment

10. Consideration of Consent Agenda ltems - None

11, Resolutions for Consideration of the Consortium Board
a. Southeast Michigan Consortium Board (CB) Resolution 17-19
KZ Bolton call to approve CB Resolution 17-19
MOTION: Conan Smith moved to approve CB Resolution 17-19 the Skilled Trades
Training Fund Awards from the Talent Invesiment Agency (TIA) to Southeast



12.

13.

Michigan Consortium in the amount of $2,884,0460.20
Bill Sleight provided update. Discussion.

SUPPORT: Ruih Brown

MOTION CARRIED

Unfinished Business — None

New Business
Q. Accept Resignation form Workforce Development Board

KZ Bolton call for a motion to accept with regrets the resignations of boord
members from the Michigon Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board.
MOTION; Dennis Dolan moved to accept with regrets the resignations from WDB
members, Mahthew Sandstrom, Owner, Rusibelt, LLC; Swatee Kulkarni, VP, GDI
Infotech, Inc. and Dr. Timothy Jackson, Aduit Education Grants Manager,
Washtenaw Couniy ISD.
SUPPORT: Julie Games
Discussion.
MOTION CARRIED

b. WDB Vacancy to Fill:

KZ Bolton reviewed the nominatiion informatlion received for the WDB
vacancy on the WDB due to resignation of Matthew Sandstrom, Owner, Rustbel,
LLC. KI Bolton call for a mofion to approve an individual io fill the vacancy.
MOTION: Conan Smith moved to approve Rich Chang, Chief Executive Officer,
NewFoundry, Ann Arbor to fill the WDB vacancy.

SUPPORT: Ruth Brown
Discussion.
MOTION CARRIED

C. Workforce Development Board {WDB) members request for Alternate
KZ Bolion reviewed the list of Alternates requested by Workforce

Development Board members.

KZ Bolion call for @ motion to approve Alternates for WD8 members.

MOTION: Conan Smith moved to approve:

Alternate- Kurtis Condon, Owner/Plant Manager, Hillsdale Terminal

(For Board Member/Hillsdale County, Donald Germann, Board Officer,

County National Bank)

Alternate-Jolene Chapman, Jackson College, Dean, Career and Technical

Education

(For Board Member/Jackson County, Jeffrey Frew, Jackson College, Vice

President of Student Services, Jackson County)

SUPPQORT: Julie Games

MOTION CARRIED



id. Discussion liems
a. KZ Bolton call for a motion io approve June 25, 2018 Southeast Consortium

Board meeting.

MOTION: Daniel Mahoney moved to approve the June 25, 2018 Southeast
Consortium Board meeling.

SUPPORT: Ruth Brown

Discussion.

MOTION CARRIED

Bill Sleight discussed the December 2017 Financials.

Bill Sleight provided update on programs, administration and state activities. Discussion.
15.  Comments from Consortium Board Members

The meteorile landed in my township. Looking forward to continuing fo serve on the
board. Welcome to new board members. Congratulation to new Chair and Vice-
Chair. Sizeable IWT Grant fo Hillsdale Hospital is appreciated in the community. Thanks
for the welcome to the board. Looking forward o working with you,

16.  Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 11:20 a.m



10

9. Consideration of Consent Agenda Items -Marcus James (Workforce

Board)
Q.

b.

January 10, 2018 Michigan Works! southeast Workforce Development
Board Minutes

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION (WDB) 17-46

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TALENT INVESTMENT AWARD OF SKILLED
TRADES TRAINING FUNDS (STTF) FOR FY 2018, OCTOBER 1. 201 7 THROUGH
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 FOR THE MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT BOARD

WDRB RESOLUTION 17-47

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND
OPPORTUNITY ACTION (WIOA} INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING (IWT} FUNDS
FOR JONESVILLE TOOL AND MANUFACTURING IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,423
WDB RESOLUTION 17-48

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA IWT FUNDS FOR MMI
ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,015

WDB RESOLUTION 17-49

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA IWT FUNDS FOR CASTER
CONCEPTS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,425

WDB RESOLUTION 17-50

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 IWT FUNDS FOR EBERBACH IN THE
AMOUNT OF $14,652

WDB RESOLUTION 17-51

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 IWT FUNDS FOR MELLING TOOL
COMPANY iN THE AMOUNT OF $10,745

WDB RESOLUTION 17-52

A RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WITH WORKFORCE INTELLIGENT NETWOR {WIN})

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION 17-55

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR FORTECH PRODUCTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $7.800

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RESOLUTION 17-36

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
{IWT) FUNDS FOR ST. JOSEPH MERCY HOSPITAL IN THE AMOUNT OF $1.816



Michigan Works! Southeast
Workforce Development Board Meeting
January 10, 2018, 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 noon
Chelsea Comfort Inn Vilage Conference Center
1645 Commerce Park Drive, Chelsea, Ml 48118

southeast Michiaan Workforce Developmeni Board Members Present

Leslie Alexander Inmatech, Inc.

Mindy Bradish-Orta Jackson Chamber of Commerce

Sean Duval Golden Limousine International

Donald Germann County National Bank

Jennifer Giannone Thai Summit

Lee Graham Operating Engineers 324 via conference call
Marcus James, Chair Stable Inc LLC

Jeremiah “JJ" Hodshire  Hiflsdale Hospital via conference call
Swatee Kuikarni GDI Infotech,. Inc. via conference call
Lynn Matzen Matrix Systems LLC

Sharon Miller Consumers Energy

Kevin Oxley Jackson County ISD

Deb Pdlich The Aris Allionce

Phil Sponsler Orbitform

Grace Trudell IBEW 58 via conference call
James Van Doren Lenawee Now

Ambrose Willbanks, Jr. Washtenaw CVB

Leann Wilt Venchurs, Inc. via conference call

Southeast Michiaan Workforce Development Board Members Absent
Richard Currie, Vice Chair Hitachi Automolive Systems

Jeremy Frew Jackson College

Paul Gonz DTE Energy

Steven Girardin Michigan Rehabilitation Service
Steven Gulick Huron Valley Area Labor Federation
Tim Jackson Washienaw ISD

Scolt Menzel Washtenaw County ISD

Angela Parth Livingston Family Cenier

Maotthew Sandsirom Rustbelt, LLC

Phil Santer SPARK

stoff

Bill Sieight, Director

Shamar Herron, Deputy Director

Robin Aldrich, IT Manager

Dan Childs, Systems Administrator

Jim Couiu, Business Services Manager

Nicole Bell, Communications Manager

Pam Gosla, Research and Education Manager
Maggie Flaherty, Administrative Services Manager

Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Workst Southeast
Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Works! Southeast
Michigan Warks! Southeast

11



12

Cthers Present:

Kurtis Condon Hillsdale Terminal

Niko Dowson WCC

Sarah Kurz EMU Nonprofit Leadership Alliance
1. Call to order

Sean Duval, Chairperson called the Southeast Michigan Workforce Development
Board at 10:05 a.m.

2. Raoll Call
Quorum Preseni

3. Introductions

4. Call to the Public
Sean Duval offered public commeni. No public comment

5. Approval of the Agenda
Sean Duval call for Workforce Development Board to approve the Agenda.
MOTION: Leslie Alexander moved to approve the Agenda.
SUPPORT: Kevin Oxley
MOTION CARRIED

6. Election of Officers and Executive Committee

Sean Duval reviewed the recommendation of the Board Development Committee
s Boord Leadership Recommendation
Q. Marcus James -Chairperson
b. Richard Currie — Vice Chairperson
* Proposed Executive Commitiee

c. Chair- Marcus James Jackson

d. Vice Chair - Richard Currie Livingsion

e. Af Large - Sharon Miller Jackson

f. At Large - Scott Menzel Washienaw
g. Atlarge - Don Germann Hillsdale

h. AtLarge —Leann Will Lenawee

i. At Lorge -Sean Duval Washtenaw
j. At Llarge - Lynn Malzen Jackson

k. AtLarge - Grace Trudell Livingston

Call for a motion to approve recommendations for Board Leadership and Execulive
Committee,

MOTION: Deb Polich moved to approve the recommendation of the Board Leadership
and the proposed Executive Commitiee.
SUPPORT: Jeremiah JJ Hodshire



13

Discussion followed to add another member to the Executive Commitiee. Request to
odd another member to the Executive Committee directed to the Board Development
Committee for discussion.

MOTION CARRIED.

7. Approval of November 8, 2017 Michigan Works! Southeas! (MWSE) Workforce
Development Board {WDB) meeting minutes.

Marcus James called for a motion to opprove the November 8, 2017 MWSE WDB
meeting minutes.

MOTION: Donald Germann moved to approve the November 8, 2017 MWSE WDB
meeting minutes. :

SUPPORT: Lynn Matzen

MOTION APPROVED.

8. Approval of Consent Agenda

Marcus James call for a motion io approve the Consent Agenda.

MOTION: Kevin Oxley moved to approve the Consent Agenda.

SUPPORT: James Van Doren

MOTION CARRIED
a. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD {(WDB) RESOLUTION 17-39
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 TRADE ADJUSTMENT
ASSISTANCE (TAA} PROGRAM FOR THE DELIVERY OF JOB TRAINING
SERVICES TO ELIG!BLE PARTICIPANTS IN THE SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN
CONSORTIUM
b WDB RESOLUTION 17-40
RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND
OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA) INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR VISION MARINE PRODUCTS, LLC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,630
c. WDB RESOLUTION 17-41
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR DEWITTS RADIATOR, INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000
d. WDB RESOLUTION 17-42
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY WIOA INCUMBENT WORK TRAINING FUNDS
FOR LOMAR MACHINE AND TOOL IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,250
e. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-43
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR GKI FOODS, LLC IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000
f. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-44
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR HORNET MANUFACTURING IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,368
. Workforce development board resolution 17-45
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR UCKELE HEALTH AND NUTRITION IN THE AMOUNT OF
$7.825



1.

12,

13.

14

Resolutions for Consideration of the Workforce Development Board (WDB) - None

Presentation - Strategic Plan Update
Bill Sleight provided update on Strategic Plan. Discussion.

Committee Reporls

a. Employer Services - Rick Currie, Chair
Review of commiitee minutes.

b. Job Seeker Services, Marcus James, Chair
Marcus lames provided update.

c. Taient District Career Council (TDCC]
Kevin Oxley, Chair provided Career and Educational Advisory Council
(CEAC]) (formerly the TDDC update} update.

d. Compliance, Finance and Operations (CFO)
Lynn Matzen, Chair provided update.

Discussion tems
a. GTIB Meeting - December 13, 2017 Meeling - Marcus James
December 17, 2017 Governor's Talent Investment Board meeting update
provided by Maorcus lames
b. The topics covered in the Executive Commitiee meeting minutes for
December é, 2017 and January 3, 2018 were discussed during foday's
meeting.

Oher ltemns
a. Chair Update - WDB Chair

Updates provided during ihe meeting.

b. Director's Update

Bill Sieight reviewed his Director's Report. Discussion.

14,

Public Comment

Marcus James offered Public Commeni. No Public Comment.

15.

Adjournment

Meefing adjourned at 12:03 p.m.



15

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-46
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William §. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: February 7, 2018

Subject: Fiscal Year [FY} 2018 Skilled Trade Training Fund {STIF)

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board approve employer training funds for FY 2018 Skilled
Trade Training Fund (STTF).

Program Award Amount $2,746,724.00
Administrative Funds $ 137,336.20
Total Award Funding $2,884,060.20

Background

2018 Skilled Trade Training Fund {10/1/17 through 9/30/18) are important
parts of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Michigan
Works! Southeast. Cumrenily, approval is needed from the Workforce
Development Board 1o execute and implement these contracts.

Discussion

The STIF provides competitive awards for employer responsive training that
enhances alent, productivity and employment retention while increasing ihe
guality and competitiveness of Michigan's employers. The STIF helps to ensure
Michigan's employers have the talent they need fo compete and grow, and
individuals have the skills they need for in-demand jobs.

As a catalyst for talent development, the STIF encourages increased
collaboration between Michigan businesses, the workforce system and
workforce fraining partners for the development and implemeniation of short-
term fraining that place workers in long-term positions with opportunities for
professional growth and economic advancement. Training is customized to
meet employee skill requirements and is short-term in duration, preferably less
than three months, with no training extending more than six months unless
otherwise approved by the TIA.

Approval of the FY 2018 STIF grants and contracts is contingeni upon approval
by the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board. A Resoluiion
is attached for your consideration.



MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-45

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TALENT INVESTMENT AGENCY (TIA) AWARD OF SKILLED
TRADES TRAINING FUNDS (STTF) FOR FY 2018, OCTOBER 1, 2017 THRROUGH
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 FOR THE MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT BOARD

WHEREAS.  The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a
Michigan Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by
Washienaw, Livingsion, Jackson, Lenawee and Hilsdale counties
and the State of Michigan; and

WHEREAS, The Soulheast Michigan Consorfium is funded by the United Staies
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Workforce Development
Agency (WDA), to provide employment fraining and placement
services; and

WHERAS, The Southeast Michigan Consoriium Board has two elecied officials
from each of the five counties in the Consorfium and serves as the
"L ocal Elected Official” Board for Workforce Development
activities; and

WHEREAS, The Consortium operates as the “Michigan Works! Southeost”

WHEREAS,  Michigan Works! staff have received Skilled Trade Training Fund
[STTF) applications from local employers; and

WHEREAS, The STIF provides competitive awards for employer responsive
training that enhances talent, productivity and employment
retention while increasing the quality and competitiveness of
Michigan's empiloyers, and

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Worksl Southeast Workforce
Development Board hereby approves the Skilled Trade Training Funds awarded
by TIA for FY 18 {10/1/17 through 9/30/18}. The grant allocation: Program Award
Amount, $ 2,746,724.00, Administrative Funds, $ 137,336.20, Total Award
Funding Amount $ 2,884,060.20

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff ore authorized 1o negotiate a STIF contracts
with the as necessary.

BE IT EURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board or their designee is auihorized to sign any
necessary confract(s), as well as any future amendments for
monetary and contract language adjustments.

16



17

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-47
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
from: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: February 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker coniract with Jonesville Tool and
Manufacturing

Board Action Requested

It is requested fhat the Michigan Works! Southeast Workiorce Development Board approve a
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Acl (WIOA) Incumbent Worker contract for
Jonesville Tool and Manufacturing in the amount of $2,423.

Background

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker (7/1/17 through 6/30/18} {raining contracts are an
important pan of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Souiheasi Michigan
Consortium. Jonesville Tool and Manufacturing is requesting a Robot Maintenance training
including in the amount of $2,423 to train 2 employees from February 26, 2018 through March
30, 2018.

Discussion
WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds {up to 20% of WIOA Adult

and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds). Incumbent Worker funds are used o train
currently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company competitive. The training is usually for short term class or certificate
training, although On-the-Job Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be frained, whaol training will be provided and the total
training cost {including employer maich). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding are
accepted on a rolling-basis, pending availability of funds and mesrit of iraining requesied by
employers.

Jonesville Tool and Manufacturing is a company that is a manufaciurer of precision
machined componenis mainly for the air conditioning and refrigeration industries.

The company is located in Hilisdale. The company has requested $2,423 in Incumbent Worker
funds o train 2 staff. The company will provide a match of $2,480 and iraining will be
provided by MH Technologies.

FY 2017 Incumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request # to be trained County
Jonesville Tool and $2,423 2 Hillsdale
Manufacturing

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Committee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker coniract with Jonesville Tool and
Manufacturing is contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board. A
Resolution is attached for your consideration.



18

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-47

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR
JONESVILLE TOOL AND MANUFACTURING IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,423

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consorlium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washtenaw, Livingston,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hilsdale counties and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States Department
of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency(ilA), to provide
employment training and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consorlium and serves as the “Local Elected Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Boord has been
appointed 1o oversee ihe operations, grants and coordination of Workforce
Development acfivilies in the counties covered by the Consortium: and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbent Worker {IW) training fund
application from Jonesville Tool and Manufacturing; and

Incumbent Worker training provides currently employed workers updated skills
to help avaid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

Jonesville Tool and Manufacturing is seeking to train 2 employees in various
iraining the amount of $2.423 between February 26, 2018 and March 30, 2018;
and

Approval of this contract requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT 1S THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amount and for the time period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that stoff are authorized to negoftiate contracts with the cbove

emplayers, and, as necessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized to sign any necessary contract(s), as well
as any future amendmenis for monetary and contract longuage adjustments,



18

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolutions 17-48
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeas!

Date: February 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker coniract with MMI Engineered Solutions, Inc.

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board approve a
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Incumbent Worker coniract for
MM Engineered Solutions, Inc. in the amouni of $21,015.

Background

FY 2017 WICA Incumbent Worker [7/1/17 through 6/30/18) training contracts are an
imporiont part of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Consortium. MMI Engineered Solutions, Inc. is requesting Job Related Skill Building training in
the amount of $21,015 io train 16 employees from February 12, 2018 through May 3, 2018.

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds [up to 20% of WIOA Aduit
and up lo 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds). Incumbent Worker funds are used to train
currently employed workers 10 help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company competitive. The fraining is usually for short term class or certificate
training. although On-the-Job Training is aliowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be trained, what training will be provided and the total
training cost (including employer match). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding are
accepted on a rolling-basis, pending availability of funds and merii of training requested by
employers.

MMI Engineered Solutions, Inc. is a company that provides Engineering Services, Tool and
Development and Production of a wide aray of plastic componenis. The company is
located in Washtenaw County with 117 full time employees. The company has requesied
$21,015 in Incumbent Worker funds to train 16 full time staff. The company will provide a
match of $22.831.48 and training will be provided by Michigan Manufacturing Technology
Center and RJG Inc.

FY 2017 iIncumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request # to be tralned County

MMI Engineered Solutions, Inc. $21,015 14 Washtenaw

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Committee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbeni Worker contract with MMI Engineered Solutions,
Inc. is contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is
atiached for your consideration.



20

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-48

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR
MMI ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,015

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS.,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washtenaw, Livingsion,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeasi Michigan Consorlium is funded by the United States Deparimeni
of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency(TIA). to provide
employment training and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the *Local Elected Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of Workforce
Development activilies in the counties covered by the Consorfium; and

Michigan Works! staff have received an iIncumbent Worker (IW) training fund
opplication from MMI Engineered Solutions, Inc.; and

Incumbent Worker training provides currently employed workers updaied skills
to help avoid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

is seeking to train 16 employees in Job Related Skill Building
in the amount of $21,015 beiween February 12, 2018 through May 3, 2018; ond

Approval of this coniract requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amount and for the time period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that stoff are authorized to negotiate contracts with the above

employers, and, as necessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized to sign any necessary contraci(s). as weli
as any future amendments for monetary and confract language adjustments.



21

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-49
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: February 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with Caster Concepts, Inc.

Board Actlion Requesied

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board approve @
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act {WIOA)} Incumbent Worker contraci for
Caster Concepts, Inc. in the amount of $6,425.

Background

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbeni Worker (7/1/17 through 6/30/18) training contracts are an
important part of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Conscriium. Casier Concepts, Inc. is requesting CNC Lathe and Mill Operation iraining in the
amount of $6.425 1o train 5 ernployees from March 13, 2018 and July 10, 2018.

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds (up to 20% of WIOA Adult
and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds}. Incumbent Worker funds are used 1o frain
currently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company competitive. The training is usually for short term class or certificate
training, although On-the-lob Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be trained, what iraining will be provided and the totol
training cost {including employer match}. Applications for incumbent Worker funding are
accepted on a rolling-basis, pending ovailability of funds and merit of training requesied by
empiloyers.

Caster Concepts, Inc. is a manufacturer that creates heavy duty casters and conveyor
assemblies. The company is located in Jackson County and has 103 full fime employees. The
company has requested $6,425 in Incumbent Worker funds fo train 5 staff. The company will
provide a match of $6,336 and training will be provided by The Academy for Manufacturing
Careers.

FY 2017 Incumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request #to be tralned County

Caster Concepis, Inc. $6,425 b Jackson

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Committee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with Caster Concepls, Inc. is
contingent upon approvai by the Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is aitached
for your consideration.



22

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-49

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR CASTER
CONCEPTS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,425

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreemeni approved by Washienaw, Livingsion,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United Staies Department
of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent investment Agency(TIA}, to provide
employment {raining and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the “Local Elecied Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Developmeni Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, granis and coordination of Workforce
Development activities in the counties covered by the Consoriium; and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbent Worker (IW) training fund
application from Caster Concepts, Inc.; and

Incumbeni Worker training provides currently employed workers updated skills
to help aveid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

Caster Concepts, Inc. is seeking to frain 6 employees in CNC Lathe and Mill
Operation in the amount of $4,425 between March 13, 2018 and July 10, 2018;
and

Approval of this contraci requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amount and for the time period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff are authorized to negotiate contracts with the above

employers, and, as necessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

8E IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized fo sign any necessary confract(s), as well
as any future amendments for monetary and contract language adjustments.



23

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolutions 17-50
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William S. Sieight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeasi
Date: February 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with Eberbach Corporaiion

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board approve a
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act {WIOA) Incumbent Worker contract for
Eberbach Corporation in the amount of $14,452.

Background

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker {7/1/17 through 6/30/18) training contracts are an
important part of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Consorfium. Eberbach Corporation is requesting Hozardous Location Electrical System
training-Classroom/On-Site in the amount of $14,625 to train ¢ employees from February 12,
2018 through February 16, 2018.

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds (up to 20% of WIOA Adult
and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocaled Worker funds). Incumbent Worker funds are used o irain
currently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company competitive. The training is usually for short ferm class or ceriificate
training, although On-the-Job Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be trained, whai training will be provided and the total
training cost (including employer maich). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding ore
accepied on a rolling-basis, pending avoilability of funds and merit of iraining requested by
employers.

Eberbach Corporation is @ company that designs and manufaciurers Mixers, Shakers,
Blenders, Mills and for more for Sample Preparation and material process applications for
pharmaceutical, chemical, energy and food and beverage industries. The company is
located in Washtenaw County with 14 full time employees. The company has requested
$14.625 in Incumbent Training Worker funds to irain 9 full fime staff. The company will provide
a match of $19,672 and tfraining will be provided by NTI.

FY 2017 Incumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request # {o be trained County

Eberbach Corporation $14,625 9 Washtenaw

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Commiiitee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with Eberbach Corporation is
contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is attached
for your consideration.



24

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-50

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR
EBERBACH IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,652

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consorfium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washienaw, Livingston,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan: and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United Siales Department
of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency(TIA), to provide
employment iraining and placement services: and

The Southeast Michigan Conserlium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the "Local Elected Official”
Board for Workforce Development aclivities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of Workforce
Development acliviiies in the counties covered by the Consorfium; and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbeni Worker (IW) training fund
application from Eberbach Corporation; and

Incumbent Worker training provides currently employed workers updated skills
to help avoid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

is seeking to train 9 employees in Hazardous Location Electrical System training-
Classroom/On-Site in the amount of $14,652 between February 12, 2018 through
February 16, 2018; and

Approval of this contract requires approval from the Souiheast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeasi Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker fraining application listed above in the
amount and for the time period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff are authorized to negotiate coniracts with the above

employers, and, as necessary, with training providers selecled by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED ihe Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized to sign any necessary contract(s), as well
as any future amendments for monetary and coniract language adjustments.



25

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-51
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Boaord
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: February 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbeni Worker contract with Melling Tool Company

Board Aclion Reguesied

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board approve a
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Incumbent Worker contract for
Melling Tool Company in the amount of $10,745.

Backgreund

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker (7/1/17 through 4/30/18) training contracis are an
important part of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Consortium. Meliing Tool Company is regquesting Fundamentials of GD 7T training in the
amount of $10,745 to train 15 employees from March 13, 2018 through March 15, 2018.

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds (up to 20% of WIOA Aduli
and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds). Incumbent Waorker funds are used to train
currently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company compaetitive. The training is usually for short term class or certificate
fraining. although On-the-Job Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be trained, what training will be provided and the total
training cosi (including employer match). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding are
accepied on a rolling-basis, pending availability of funds and merit of training requested by
employers.

Melling Tools Company is a manufaciurer thot creates cil, well and fuel pumps. The company
is located in Jackson and has 240 full ime employees. The company has requesied $10.745
in Incumbent Worker funds to irain 15 staff people. The company will provide a match of
$7,860 and training will be provided by Tec-Ease.

FY 2017 Incumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request # to be tralned County

Melling Tool Company $10.475 15 Jackson

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Committee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbenit Worker contract with Melling Tool Company is
contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is attached
for your consideration.



26

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTICN 17-51

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR MELLING
TOOL COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,745

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washtenaw, Livingston,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties ond the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States Depariment
of Labor (USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency(TIA}, to provide
employment i{raining and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the “"Local Elected Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of Workforce
Development activities in the counties covered by the Consorlivm; and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbent Worker (IW) training fund
application from Melling Tool Company; and

Incumbent Waorker training provides currently employed workers updated skills
to help avoid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

Melling Tool Company is seeking to train 15 emplayees in Fundamentals of
GDA&T in the amount of $10,745 between March 13, 2018 and March 15, 2018;
and

Approval of this contract requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT 1S THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amount and for the lime period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff are authorized 1o negotiate contracts with the above

employers, and, as hecessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized to sign any necessary contraci(s}, as well
as any future amendmenis for monetary and contract language adjustments.



27

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-52
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: william S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: February 7, 2018

Subject Workforce Intelligence Network (WIN} of Southeast Michigan
program Memorandum of Understanding {MOU)

Board Action R ed

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board approve the Chair's signature on Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Workforce intelligence Network (WIN} of
Southeast Michigan. This is renewai of an existing MOU.

Discussion

WIN will serve three primary roles for the Southeast Michigan Works!
Agencies Council which Michigan Works! Southeast is a pariner:
Gathering, analyzing and disiributing real-time labor supply and demand
inteligence on workforce needs and characteristics specific to the
Southeast Michigan Region; Convening, facilitating, engaging employers,
and serving as the connection point for business, indusiry and other stake
holderss in regards to workforce development; Developing strategies and
funding proposals for the delivery of regional workforce development
programs through its partners.

This agreement will last for Five Years from 12/1/17 through 11/30/22.



28

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
RESOLUTION 17-52

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)
WITH THE WORKFORCE INTELLIGENT NETWORK (WIN) OF SOUTHEAST
MICHIGAN

WHEREAS, The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as
a Michigan Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement
approved by Washtenaw, Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and
Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan; and

WHEREAS, The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United
States Depariment of Labor (USDOL} and the Talent
Investment Agency (TIA), to provide employment training
and placement services; and

WHERAS, The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected
officials from each of the five counties in the Consortium and
serves as the “Local Elected Official” Board for Workforce
Development activities; and

WHERAS, The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development
Board has been appointed to oversee the operations, grants
and coordination of Workforce Development activities in the
counties covered by the Consortium; and

WHEREAS, The Workforce innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)
requires that MOUs be established with certain
grant/programs; and

WHEREAS, This request is renewal of an existing MOU; and

WHEREAS, One of these pariners is Workforce Intelligent Agency [WIN) of
Southeast Michigan which will serve three primary roles for the
Southeast Michigan Works! Agencies Council (SEMWAC])
which includes Michigan Works! Southeast; and

WHEREAS, The Three Primary Roles WIN will serve for SEMWAC:
Gathering, analyzing and distributing real-time labor supply
and demand intelligence on workforce needs and
characteristics' specific to the Southeast Michigan Region;
Convening, facilitating, engaging employers, and serving as
the connection point for business, industry and other stake
holders in regards o workforce development; developing
strategies and funding proposals for the delivery of regional
workforce development programs through its partners; and



29

WHEREAS, This agreement will last for Five Years from 12/1/17 through
11/30/22; and

WHEREAS, This MOU requires approval from the Michigan Worksl
Southeast Workforce Development Board and the Southeast
Michigan Consortium Board.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board hereby approves the Memorandum of
Understanding with WIN.,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff are authorized to negofiate the specifics
of the MOU.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast
Workforce Development Board or their designee is authorized
to sign the MOU.



WORKFORCE INTELLIGENCE NETWORK OF SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN
Community Colleges Serving Southeast Michigan:
Henry Ford College
Jackson College
Macomb Community College
Monroe County Community College
Mott Community College
Oakland Community College
Schoolcraft College
St. Clair County Community College

Washtenaw Community College
Wayne County Community College District

and Michigan Works! Agencies Serving Southeast Michigan:
Detroit Employment Solutions Corporation
Genesee-Shiawassee Michigan Works!
Macomb/St. Clair Michigan Works!
Michigan Works! Southeast
Oakland County Michigan Works!
Southeast Michigan Community Alliance

Part I - Introduction and Purpose

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as MOU) is
between the aforementioned Community Colleges serving southeast Michigan
(hereinafter referred to as the Colleges) and the above-named Michigan
Works! Agencies (MWAs) in southeast Michigan, collectively known as the
Southeast Michigan Works! Agencies Council (hereinafter referred to as
SEMWAC). This MOU is entered into for the purpose of delineating the
respective roles and shared responsibilities of the partners to develop the
“Workforce Intelligence Network of Southeast Michigan,” (hereinafter
referred to as WIN).

The partners named above seek to create a comprehensive and cohesive
workforce development system in Southeast Michigan to provide employers
with the best workforce and to develop the talent of the region so that
workers are prepared to succeed in the workplace.

Februaey 2, 20108 n



31

Part [} - WIN Roles

The WIN will serve three primary roles for the region:

« Gathering, analyzing, and distributing real-time labar supply and demand
intelligence on workforce needs and characteristics specific to the Southeast
Michigan Region.

» Convening, facilitating, engaging employers, and serving as the connection
point for business, industry and other stakeholders in regard to workforce
development.

 Developing strategies and funding proposals for the delivery of regional
workforce development programs through its partners.

Part 1] - Governance Stracture

The WIN Governing Board shall consist of one voting member from
each signatory to this MOU. The community college signatories shall
be represented by the college president or designee.

The Michigan Works! Agency signatories shall be represented by
their director or chief executive officer.

The officers of the WIN Board shall consist of two Co-Chairs and
two Vice Co-Chairs. One Co-Chair and one Vice Co-Chair shall be
selected from among the official community college
representativesdesignated by the Presidents of the member
colleges, and one Co-Chair and one Vice Co-Chair shall be
selected from among the Directors of the Michigan Works!
Agencies. The WIN Board may have such ather officers asthe

WIN Board may from time-to-time deem necessary and such officers
shall have the authority prescribed by the Board.

Al official business on which the WIN Board votes shall be decided
by a consensus of the WIN Board's voting members whe are present
at the meeting, unless these members decide, by consensus, thata
particular business item shall be decided by a majority of the
members who are present at the meeting. Consensus shall be
defined as the unanimous agreement among all of the WIN Board's
voting members who are present at the meeting,

The WIN Board shall develop and adopt bylaws which shall set forth
the operating procedures of the Board. The bylaws shall also
establish the process by which the WIN Board may create and
appoint members, and designate the duties and responsibilities of

committees and workgroups.
Febnary 2, 2008 m



32

The WIN Board shall also identify, through bylaws or resolution,
the process and methods for other key stakeholders to participate
in the WIN. These stakeholders may include, but not necessarily be
limited to, any of the following:

» Regional business accelerators

+ Local and regional economic development agencies
and organizations

» Other regional and sectoral workforce initiatives

+ Secondary and other post-secondary institutions

« Community basedorganizations

» The New Economy Initiative (NEI)

» Employers or organizations representing employers in
Southeast Michigan

Part IV - Activities of the WIN

The WIN Board shall develop and approve an annual work pian, which shall
identify specific strategies, activities and benchmarks for the three primary WIN
roles identified in Part II, The WIN Board shall also develop and approve an
annual budget which shall identify expenditure categories and line items,
revenue sources, and the cash, in-kind and leveraged resources contributed by
partners and stakeholders to support the project. It is expected this Network
shall be funded by a variety of sources, including foundations, state and federal
grant revenues, and contributions from partners and stakeholders.

Part V - Identification of Fiscal Agent and Fiscal Agent Responsibilities

The Partners agree that the fiscal agent for this project shall be the Southeast
Michigan Community Alliance (SEMCA), SEMCA shall retain its statusas a full
partner inthe WIN along with the other parties to this MOU and it shall have
the same rights and responsibilities as the other parties to participate in the
WIN governance and WIN activities, as described in Parts Il] and [V of this

MOU.
As fiscal agent, SEMCA agrees to provide the following fiscal services:

» Hire the WIN Executive Director and other staff selected by the WIN
Governing Board as either independent contractors or employees of the
fiscal agent.

« Receive revenue on behalf of the WIN from various sources designated by
the WIN Governing Board.

« PayWIN expenditures in accordance with generally accepted

February 2, 2008 u




33

standards of accounting and fiscal reporting.

» Maintain and retain appropriate financial records.

« Allocatethe WIN budgettothe proper line items, initiate budget
amendments, and monitor the account funds to preclude
overspending.

« Maintain and make available to the WIN, and other funders upon
request, all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to
the costs and expenses relating to this MOU to the extent and insuch
detail aswill properly reflect all direct costs oflabor, materials,
equipment, supplies, servicesand other costs and expenses for which
reimbursement is claimed, or payment is made under the provisions of
this MOU.

« Provide Worker's Compensation insurance and general liability
insurance coverage required by law, or determined as necessary by the
WIN Governing Board or the SEMCA Governing Board.

SEMCA agrees that the WIN Governing Board shall retain the foliowing
responsibilities:

« Setting all policies, goals and objectives for the WIN, and its programs,
practices, projects and services.

« Implementing the terms and conditions of grant awards not
specifically related tothe responsibilities of the Fiscal Agent,and
administering the grant award agreement from award to closeout.

« Keeping abreast of changes in funder paolicies, procedures or
requirements, and notifying the Fiscal Agentina timely manner of any of
these changes.

» Selecting the WIN Executive Director and any staff, volunteers or
contractors working on the project.

The compensation for performing fiscal agent responsibilities shall be determined
by the grant agreement with various funding sources.

The WIN Governing Board reserves the right to select other fiscal agents to
manage all or part of the funds awarded to the WIN. Any such change in fiscal
agents shall be reflected in an amendment to this MOU.

Part VI - Commitment of Partners

1. The partners agree to provide cash resources (including possible "membership
fees"), leveraged resources and in-kind resources as negotiated among the board
members annually and to generally support activities resulting in attainment of
WIN mission, vision and goals.

2. Each partner shall identify an appropriate key leader to serve on the WIN

February 2. Z(HE



Board and other committees and workgroups of the WIN.

Part VII - Duration And Modification of the Agreement

This MOU is entered into this 15t day of December, 2017 by and between the
above named Community Colleges and SEMCA agencies serving southeast
Michigan.

This MOU is effective upon signing by the authorizing parties hereto, and shall
remain effective until November 30. 2022, unless terminated in accordance with the
provision specified below.

This MOU may be modified atany time by written agreement of the parties. Such
amendments shall require the signature ofall parties affected by suchamendment.

Assignment of responsibilities under this MOU by any of the parties shall be
effective upon written notice tc the other parties. Any assignee shall also commit
inwriting to the terms of this MOU.

Part VIII - Termination of the Agreement

Any party may terminate its participation by providing at least sixty (60) days
notice, in writing, of its intent to withdraw from the partnership. Notice of
withdrawal shall be given to all parties covered by this MOU. Should any partner
withdraw, this MOU shall remain in effect with respect to the remaining parties
until a new MOU is executed, or until the end of the duration of this MOU.

Part 1X - Other Provisions

Nothing herein shall create any joint venture, partnership or other business
association, nor shall any party enter into any obligation or commitment on
behalf of another.

The parties recognize that the consortium is an evelving relationship that will
require further agreements and understandings. The parties acknowledge that
the scape of the relationship may beconstrained by personnel, funding and other
considerations. These issues will be discussed, prioritized and otherwise
strategized by the governing body.

This MOU constitutes solely a guide to the intentions and policies of the parties
and is not intended to authorize, commit or otherwise establish any funding or
any new project, nor is ita legally binding contract.

This MOU constitutes the whole agreement on this matter between the parties and
supersedes any communications outside the auspices of thisMOU.

February 2, 2018 n



35

Part X - Certification and Signatures

The individuals signing below have the authority to commit the party they
represent to the terms of this MOU and do so commit by signingbelow.

Approval on behalf of Henry Ford College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Jackson College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Macomb Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Monroe County Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Mott Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Oakland Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Schoolcraft College

Name, Title, Date

February 2, 2018



Approval on behalf of St. Clair County Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Washtenaw Community College

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Wayne County Community College District

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Detroit Employment Solutions Corp

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Genesee-Shiawassee Michigan Works!

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Macomb/St. Clair Michigan Works!

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Michigan Works! Southeast

Name, Title, Date

February 2, 2018 c



37

Approval on behalf of Oakland County Michigan Works!

Name, Title, Date

Approval on behalf of Southeast Michigan Community Alliance

Name, Title, Date

February 2, 2018 I l



38

MEMORANDUM
Workforce Development Board Resolution 17-55
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: william S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract approval for Fortech Products

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Souiheast Workforce Development Board approve G
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) incumbent Worker contract for
Fortech Products in the amount of $7,800

Background

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker [7/1/17 through 6/30/18) training contracts are an
imporiant part of ihe Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Consorfium. Fortech Products in Livingston County is requesting Process Mapping &
Mentoring Training in the amount of amount of $7,800 fo train employees from March 12,
2018 to January 31, 2019,

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds (up to 20% of WIOA Adult
and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds). Incumbent Worker funds are used lo irain
currently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills ond/or help
keep the company competitive. The training is usually for short term class or certificate
training, although On-the-Job Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be frained, what training will be provided and the toial
training cost {including employer matich). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding are
accepted on a rolling-basis, pending availability of funds and merit of training requested by
employers.

Fortech Products is requesting $7.800 to train 18 employees in Process Mapping & Mentoring.
The company will coniribute $12,960 as match in the form of wages to the participants and
fuifion. Training will be conducted by the Michigan Manufacturing Technology Center
(MMTC).

FY 2017 Incumbeni Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Award # to be trained County

Fortech Producis $7.800 18 Livingston

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Commitiee.

Approval of Incumbent Waorker grant contracts is needed from the Workforce Development
Board. A Resolution is aitached for your consideration.



39

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-55

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR FORTECH
PRODUCTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,800

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS.

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designaled as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washtenaw, Livingston,
lackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency
(TIA}, to provide employment training and placement services; ond

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from each
of the five counties in the Consorfium and serves as the *Local Elected Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities: and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations. granis and coordination of Workforce
Development activities in the counties covered by the Consortium; and

The Consorfium operates as the "Michigan Works! Southeast” agency: and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbent Worker {IW) fraining fund
application from Fortech Products in Livingston Counly, MI; and

Incumbent Worker training provides currently employed workers updaied skills
to help avoid layoffs and keep their employer competitive; and

Fortech Products is seeking to train 18 employees in Process Mapping and
Menioring March 12, 2018 through January 31, 2019.

Approval of this contract requires approval from the Michigan Works! Southeast
Workfarce Development Board.

T IS THEREFORE RESOLVED ihe Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amounts and for the time periods described.

8E IT FURTHER RESOLVED ihat staff are authorized to negotiate a contract with the above

employer, and, as necessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or iheir designee is authorized to sign any necessary contract(s), as well
as any future amendmenits for monetary and contract language adjustmenis.



40

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-56
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 7, 2018
Subject: FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with St. Joseph Mercy Health System

Board Aclion Requested

it is requesied that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board opprove a
FY 2017 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) incumbent Worker coniract for St.
Joseph Mercy Health System in the amount of $1.816.

Bockground

FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker {7/1/17 through 6/30/18} training contracis are an
important part of the Business Services run in the five counties of the Southeast Michigan
Consortium. St. Joseph Mercy Healih Sysiem is requesting welding training and cerlification
fraining in the amount of $1,816 to train 8 employees from March 12, 2018 through July 27,
2018.

Discussion

WIOA expands the funding available for Incumbent Worker funds (up 1o 20% of WIOA Adult
and up to 20% of WIOA Dislocated Worker funds). Incumbent Worker funds are used to frain
cumently employed workers to help avoid layoffs, learn new, necessary skills and/or help
keep the company competitive. The training is usually for short term class or certificate
training, although On-the-Job Training is allowed. Companies must provide information on
why training is needed, who will be trained, what iraining will be provided and the total
training cost (including employer match). Applications for Incumbent Worker funding are
accepted on a rolling-basis, pending availability of funds and merit of training requested by
employers.

S1. Joseph Mercy Hospital (SJMHS) is an organization that provides health care serving seven
counties in Southeast Michigan. The company is iocated in Washienaw County and has
13,400 full time employees. TSIMHS has requested $1,816 in Incumbeni Worker funds to train 8
staff. SIMHS will provide a match of $2,994 and training will be provided by Washtenaw
Community College.

FY 2017 incumbent Worker contracts for approval

Company Name Grant Request # to be irained County

St. Joseph Mercy Hospital $1.816 8 Washtenaw

The IWT Grant Application has been reviewed and approved by the Review Commitiee.

Approval of the FY 2017 WIOA Incumbent Worker contract with St, Joseph Mercy Hospital is
contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is attached
for your consideration.



41

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-56

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR ST.
JOSEPH MERCY HOSPITAL IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,816

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan Works!
area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washienaw, Livingston,
Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of Michigan: and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United Staies Department
of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency(TIA), to provide
employment training and placement services: and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elecied officials from each
of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the “Local Bected Official”
Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of Workforce
Development activities in the counties covered by the Consortium; and

Michigan Works! staff have received an Incumbent Warker (IW} fraining fund
applicaiion from St. Joseph Mercy Hospital, and

Incumbent Worker training provides currently employed workers updated skills
to help avoid layoffs and keep their employer competlitive; and

st. Joseph Mercy Hospital is seeking o train 8 employees in Sterile Processing
Capstone Course in the amount of $1,816 between March 12, 2018 through July
27, 2018; and

Approval of this contract requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Workforce Development Board.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board

hereby approves the Incumbent Worker training application listed above in the
amount and for the time period described.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff are authorized to negotiate contracts with the above

employers, and, as necessary, with training providers selected by the employer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board or their designee is authorized to sign any necessary coniract(s}, as well
as any future amendments for monetary and contract language adjustments..



11.

42

Resolutions for Consideration of the Workforce Development Board (WDB)
- Marcus James

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (WDB) RESOLUTION 17-33

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ADDITIONAL FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$15,500 FOR SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER

WDB RESOLUTION 17-57

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CAREER AND EDUCATIONAL ADVISORY
COUNCIL {CEAC) MEMBERSHIP FOR MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST

WDB RESOLUTION 17-58

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF WORKFORCE INNOVATION
AND OPPORTUNITY ACTION (WIOA) RELEASE OF A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
(RFP) FOR SPECIALIZED YOUTH SERVICES

WDB RESOLUTION 17-59

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF WIOA RFP FOR

SPECIALIZED BUSINESS SERVICES-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES



43

MEMORANDUM
workforce Development Resolution 17-53
To: Michigan Workst Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: william 5. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 7, 2018
Subject: Request to increase the Small Business Development Center-Washtenaw

Community College (SBDC-WCC]) coniract in the amount to $15,500 and
to WCC Employmeni Services Contract by $15.500

Board Action Reguested

On November 30, 2016 the Michigan Works! souiheas! Workforce Development Board
awarded a contract for the period 1/1/17 to 6/30/18 in the amount of $90,000 to
provide Specialized Business Services to Small Business Development Center ot
Washienaw Community College (SBDC-WCC}. Also, a contract for the same lime
period was awarded to Washtenaw Community College in the amount of $1 ,248,355 to
deliver our Employment Services program in four of our service centers.

WCC is reguesting that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
approve a $15,500 increase fo their SBDC contraci which will bring that contract o
$105.500, WCC is also requesting that their Employment Services coniract be reduced
by that same amount, in effect transferring funds from one contract to another. The
transfer will enable to continue providing all services under both contracts through the
balance of the contract period.

Background

The Workforce Development Board issued a Request for Proposals in the fall of 2016 for
Specialized Business Services. The goal was to support ouireach to employers and
expand the reach of Michigan Works! Southeast's Business Services, We asked bidders
to focus their efforts around the following goals:
« Expanding the Services provided to employers through Michigan Works!
Southeast
» Increase Business engagement with the Michigan Works! system
« Increase Business engagement with the local school systems, especially
secondary and post-secondary schools
« Assist businesses with locating/developing training to increase job retention and
decrease turnover

The Small Business Development Cenier was one of four bidders approved for funding.
Their initial request was over $120.000 bul the board reduced that to $90,000 primarily
due to fund availability. They are now projecting that based on curreni spending
patterns they will have a shortfall of $15,500



Here is a summary of their pefformance as of 12/31/17 on this contract.

Goal

Employers Contacted

Job Placements
Trainings

Hours of Business
Counseling

Employers Counseled

Client Businesses Started

Contract
Goals

300

60

1200

120

18

Client Capital Invesiment

($)

At its March 7. 2018 meeting the Workforce Develo
reviewed these modification requests and recomm

2,000,000

Actual Yo
N/A N/A
169 282%
9 75%
1008 84%
146 138%
V7 94%
3,893,900 195%

chart below. A Resolution is attached for your consideration.

pment Council Execufive Committee
ends approval as defailed in the

Service Provider

Approved amount
For Jan 1 2017-June
30, 2018

mModificaiions
Approved on March
7.2018

Contract Amount
March 7, 2018

Small Business Dev. $ 90,000 $ 15500 $ 105,500
Cir-Washtenaw

Community College

Washtenaw $ 1,248,355 % (15.500) $1.232,885

Communitly College




MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-53
RESOLUTION APPROVING A REQUEST TO INCREASE THE SPECIALIZED BUSINESS SERVICES
CONTRACT WITH THE SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER-WASHTENAW COMMUNITY
COLLEGE (SBDC-WCC) BY $15,500 AND TO DECREASE THE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES
CONTRACT WITH WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE BY $15,500

WHEREAS, The Souiheast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan
Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washienaw,
Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the Stale of
Michigan; and

WHEREAS, The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Workforce Development Agency
(WDA), to provide employment iraining and placement services: and

WHERAS, The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from
each of ihe five counties in the Consortium and serves as the “Local
Flected Official” Board for Warkforce Development activities; and

WHERAS, The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of
Workforce Development acfivities in the counties covered by the
Consortium; and

WHEREAS, Workforce Development Board Resolution 16-53 approved a contract
with the Small Business Developmeni Center - Washtenaw Community
College to provide specialized business services in the amount of 390,00
$1,248,355, and

WHEREAS, Workforce Development Board Resolution 16-37 approved a contract
with Washtenaw Community College to provide Wagner Peyser
Employment Services and other career services to job seekers in the
amount of $20,00 $1,248,355, and

WHEREAS, Washienaw Community College has submitied a request to increase their
SBDC-WCC coniract by $15,500 and reduce iheir Wagner Peyser
Employment Services contract by $1 5,500, and

WHEREAS, The Workforce Development Board Executive Commitiee has approved
these requests and recommends their approval.

iT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development
Board hereby approves an increase in the SBDC-WCC coniract by
$15,500 to $105,500 and a decrease the WCC Wagner Peyser
Employment Services confract by $15,500 to $1,232,885.

8E IT FURTHER RESOLVED  that the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board is authorized to sign the contract modifications.



46

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resclution 17-57
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 14, 2018
Subject: Appointment of Members to the Career Educational Advisory Council

Board Actlon Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Worksl Southeast Workforce Development Board
approve appoiniments to the Career Educational Advisory Council as detailed in ihe
attached resolution and chort.

Background

Last December the Talent investment Agency released Policy Issuance 17-24 which
creates a Career Educational Advisory Council (CEAC) in each of the 16 Michigan
Works! regions. These councils replace the ten Talent Distict Career Councils which
had a similar role for the each of the Regional Prosperity districts in the state. The
Councils are intended to bring education and business together by establishing a
formal entity and mechanism io build and maintain a collaborative parinership with
local school districls, employers, postsecondary institutions, advocates, and iraining
centers to ideniify significant talent needs in a community and collectively develop
and implement training sirategies to effectively meet employers' talent needs. These
advisary councils are required by state law. The federal Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act also recommends that each workforce board have youth council io
provide input on services designed {o prepare youth for careers. The policy requires
boards to appaint members and submil a membership roster 1o the state by March 19,
2018.

Discussion

Since release of the policy, staff and members of the former Talent District Career
Council (TDCC) have had meetings o discuss implemeniation of the policy. Al
members of the TDCC were asked if they wanted to be appointed to the new Council.
In addition, the Governor's Talent Investment board suggested possible members, and
the Talent Investiment Agency reached out fo schools and other pariners informing
them that these councils were being creoted. The altached list reflects input from all of
these sources. as well as an attempt to ensure that all counties of the region were
represented.

It is clearly ihe intent of both TIA and the Governor that these councils will play a major
role in advising Workforce Boards on issues related to career preparation, career
awareness, and in encouraging, developing and coordinating stronger partnerships
between business and education so that individuals are prepared to meet the



47

demands of the labor market, CEAC's will also be required to track and report the
following metrics:

 Establishing Registered Apprenticeships.

« Promoting career pathway and exploration events such as talent
tours, MiCareerQuest®, Manufacturing Week, Energy Week, and
National Registered Apprenticeship Week.

The WDB may include additional metrics in addition to those listed above. Examples
include:

» Developing employer internships.

« Developing Work-Based Learning acfivities, including iniernships,
mentorships, and sefvice learning progroms (experience-based
learning through paid employment in practical. curricuium-related
work assignments tailored io a student schedule).

» Establishing Registered Apprenticeships for youth.
» Establishing Pre-Apprenticeships.

CEAC members are appointed by the Workforce Development Board for three year
terms. The Board is also required to appoint a chair of the CEAC. Kevin Oxley.
Superintendent of Jackson ISD, has been the chair ot the TDCC and desirers fo
conlinue as chair of the new CEAC council. We are still seeking one additional
member to represent an in-demand industry, and hope to have that individual
identified prior to the meeting. A resolution is atlached for your consideraiion.



48

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

CAREER AND EDUCATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL (CEAC)
RESOLUTION 17-57

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE CAREER AND EDUCATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
MEMBERSHIP FOR MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS.

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Michigan Talent Invesiment Agency (TIA} has determined that
Education Advisory Groups (EAGs) will serve regions and will be known as
Career and Educational Advisory Council (CEAC); and

The Career and Education Advisory Council includes the counties of
Hillsdale, Jackson, Lenawee, Livingston and Washtenaw; and

EAGs are mandated by Staie law fo serve in an advisory capacity to
Workforce Development Boards on youth and education related issues;
and

The CEAC will develop programs and odvise the Michigan Works!
Southeast Workforce Development Board on educational/youth issues;
and

TIA policy requires that CEAC members be appointed by the Michigan
Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board;

At their meefing on March 7, 2018, ihe Michigan Works! Southeast
Workforce Development Board Executive Committee recommended the
appointment of the listed nominees to the Career and Educational
Advisory Council.

THEREFORE BE [T RESOLVED thai the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development

Board hereby appoints the nominees as listed to the Career and
Educational Advisory Council {CEAC)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Kevin Oxley be appointed Chair of the Career

Educational Advisory Council



49

Required Sector Nominge Organization Term
Local WDB Member
Jererny Frew Jackson Ending June 30,
Community 2019
College
Employer Sharon Miller Consumers Energy | Ending June 30,
Representing In- 2020
demand Industries
Employer Bill Rayl Jackson Area Ending June 30,
Representing in- Manufacturers 2021
demand Industries Association
Employer Tim Rogers Enterprise Group Ending June 30,
Representing In- 2020

demand Indusiries

Labor

Grace Trudell

IBEW

Ending June 30,
2019

Local School District
offering CTE or
Aduli Education

Kevin Upton

Washtenaw ISD-
Lincoln School

Ending June 30,
2020

Career and Jack Townsley Lenawee ISD Ending June 30,
Technical 2021
Education Michelle Radcliff Livingston ESA Ending June 30,
Administrators 2019
Post Secondary Jack Bidlack Eastern Michigan Ending June 30,
Institution University 2020
Linda Biakey Washtenaw Ending June 30,
Community 2021
College

Intermediate

School District Scolt Menzel Washtenaw ISD Ending June 30,
2019

Public School Kevin Oxley Jackson ISD Ending June 30,
Parent 2020

Academic Jonathon Tobar Hillsdale ISD Ending June 30,
Educator 2021

Tim Jackson Washtenaw ISD Ending June 30,
2019

Cairi Bushinski Norihwest Schools | Ending June 30,
2020

Other Matt Shane MSU Exiension Ending June 30,
2021

Tim Rogers The Enterprise Ending June 30,

Group

2019




50

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-58
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: williarn S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeost
Date: March 14,2018
Subject: WIOA Youth Services Request for Proposal release approval

Board Action Requested

It is requested thal the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development
Board approve the release of a Request for Proposal (RFP) for specialized WIOA
Youth workforce development services for the time period July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2019 with a one year opflion to renew.

Discussion

Michigan Works! siaff desire to bid out service for speciclized WIOA Youth due fo
the specialized skills needed to deliver services to these populations. The
“specialized” services are for programs such as alternalive high schoois, off-site
youth services programs and other related workforce services targeted to
eligible Youth. Several agencies are locally available that can adequalely
implement these programs.

PROJECTED RFP TIMELINE

March 14, 2018 Consortium Board/Workforce Development
Board authorize release of Request for
Proposals

Week of March 19, 2018 RFP packets availoble

Week of March 26, 2018 Bidders Conference

April 26, 2018 Proposals Due

wWeek of April 30, 2018 Review by Proposal Review Committee

May 9. 2018 Contract Awards by WDB

Release of jhis RFP is contingent on the approval of the Michigan Works!
Southeast Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is atiached for your
consideration.



51

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

RESOLUTION 17-58

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR
SPECIALIZED WIOA YOUTH

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a
Michigan Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by
Washtenaw, Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hilisdale counties
and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consorfium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor [USDOL) and the Workforce Development
Agency (WDA), to provide employment fraining and placement
services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials
from each of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the
“Local Elected Official" Board for Workforce Development
activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has
been appointed o oversee the operations. grants and
coordination of Workforce Development activities in the counties
covered by the Consortium; and

it is desirable to procure the delivery of workforce development
services for WIOA Youth for the time period July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2019 with a one year oplion to renew; and

The RFP will be released according to State of Michigan and
Federal requirementis; and

A review committee will make a recommendation to the
Workforce Developmeni Board on the vendor and proposal to
select.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Workforce Development Board approves the

publication and release of the Request for Proposals for the WIOA
Youih program.



MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolution 17-59
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: wiliam S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 14, 2018
Subject: Specialized Business Services- Economic Development Request for

Proposal release approval

Board Aclion Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development
Board approve the release of a Request for Proposal {RFP) for Specialized
Business Services- Economic Development services for the time period

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 with a one year option to renew.

Discussion

Michigan Works! staff desire to bid oul services for economic development due
to the specidlized services needed to effectively assist local employers. This RFP
will focus on procuring activities for retention services, organizing partnerships
with established economic development agencies and business engagement,
This RFP release and subsequent contract will fall under the “Business Sefvices”
umbrella of Michigan Works! Southeast and work closely with Business Services
staff. Several agencies are locally available that can adequately implement
these programs.

PROJECTED RFP TIMELINE

March 14, 2018 Consortium Board/Workforce Development
Board authorize release of Request for
Proposals

Week of March 19, 2018 RFP packeis available

Week of March 26, 2018 Bidders Conference

April 256, 2018 Proposals Due

Week of April 30, 2018 Review by Proposal Review Commitiee

May 9, 2018 Contract Awards by WDB

Release of this RFP is contingent on the approval of the Michigan Works!
Southeast Workforce Development Board. A Resolution is atiached for your
consideration.

52



93

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

RESOLUTION 17-59

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RELEASE OF A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR
SPECIALIZED BUSINESS SERVICES- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Souiheas!t Michigan Consortium has been designated as a
Michigan Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by
Washienaw, Livingsion, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties
and the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Workforce Development
Agency (WDA), to provide employment training and piacement
services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board hos two elected officials
from each of the five counties in the Consortium and serves os the
“Local Elected Official" Board for Workforce Development
activities; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Developmeni Board has
been appointed to oversee the operations, grants ond
coordination of Workforce Development activities in the counties
covered by ithe Consortium; and

It is desirable to procure the delivery of services as part of the
Business Services provided by Michigan Works! Southeast for the
time period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 with a one year
option to renew; and

The RFP will be released according to State of Michigan and
Federal requirements; and

A review committee will moke a recommendation 1o the
Workforce Development Board on the vendor and proposal to
select.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that ihe Workforce Development Board approves the

publication and release of the Specialized Business Services-
Economic Development RFP.



12, Resolutions for Consideration of the southeast Michlgan Consortium Board
(CB) - KZ Bolton
a. CBRESOLUTION 17-21
A RESOLUTION APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
2017 MICHIGAN WORKS! AGENCY
b. CB RESOLUTION 17-22
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SALARY STRUCTURE AND COMPENSATION
POLICY FOR MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST



55

MEMORANDUM
Consortium Board Resolution 17-21
To: Southeast Michigan Consortium Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast

Date: March 5, 2018

Subject: Fiscal Year 2017 agency budget modification approvai

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board approve the Fiscal
Year 2017 Michigan Works! Agency budget modification number two for the
time period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.

Discussion

In Resolution CB 16-55 passed on June 5, 2017, the Consortium Board approved
the FY 17 budget as presented. A modification to that budget was approved in
Resolution CB 17-12 passed on Sept. 13. Since then we have received additional
grant awards, primarily from the state's Skilled Trades Training Fund, and we
have a clearer picture of expenditure patterns. As a resuli, we are presenting a
modification to the budget for your consideration.

The modification reflects an increase in projected revenue and expenditures of
about $1.4 million from the modified budget, or almost $2.4 million from our initial
budget. The bulk of the increased revenue comes from the Skilled Trades
Training Fund projects that were approved last fall. However, we also received
increases in our Employment Services grant, our Service Center Operations
grant, and several smalier grants. Adjustments have also been made in some
cases o the projected carry forward funds into the next budget year, which
changes the fund availability for this year. Many of our grants have two year
spending authority so we do plan for some camry forward as a hedge against
projected smaller allocations next year and fo preserve first quarter cash flow in
cases where grant awards may not be immediately available.

Some expenditure lines have also been adjusted. Of most note, the salaries and
fringes line has been reduced more than $770,000 due to lower than projected
salary adjustments. Since our compensation study was still underway when the
original budget was approved we budgeied for a 5% increase over last year to
make sure we had room to implement the consultant's recommendations. As
you may recall, the Board approved a 2% increase at its December meeting.
Most of the surplus was moved to participant training and support. but several
other line items were also adjusted to reflect current projections through 6/30/18.
The net result is that our operating costs, (which consists of all lines except
participant training and support) is $615.000 lower than budgeted. When that is



56

combined with the increased revenue, the participant training and support line
increases by more than $2 milion io $6.8 million.

The Program Year 2017 Michigan Works! Agency budget modification requires
approval from the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board. The Executive
Committee of the Michigon Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
has recommended approval of the modifications. A Resolution is attached for
your consideration.



57

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN CONSORTIUM BOARD

RESOLUTION
17-21

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING THE APPROVED FISCAL YEAR 2017 MICHIGAN WORKS!
AGENCY BUDGET

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan
Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washienaw,
Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the State of
Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Talent Investiment Agency (TIA),
to provide employment training and placement services; and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has been
appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination of
Workforce Development activities in the counties covered by the
Consortium; and

To assist with planning out programs and activities, staff developed a
budget for Fiscal Year 2017 (7/1/17 through 6/30/18} and it was
approved by the Consorfium Board on 6/5/17 in Resolution 16-55; and
modified by the Consortium Board on 9/13/17 in Resolution 17-12; and

There is a need to modify the budget to incorporate increased revenue
and to make adjustments to expenditure fine items; and

Expenditures are estimated based on projected caseload, projected
services to employers and necessary staffing levels; and

Approval of this budget modificafion requires approval from the
Southeast Michigan Consortium Board; and

The Executive Committee of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workiorce
Development Board is recommending approval of the budget
modifications.

(T IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board hereby

approves the modifications to the Fiscal Year 2017 budget for the
Southeast Michigan Workst Agency for the time period July 1, 2017
through June 30, 2018.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Chair of the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board or

their designee is authorized to sign any necessary documents for this
budget modification.



Budget Amendment 2 - Revenue

58

Praviously
Approved Proposed New Propased
Revenue by Source 9/2017 Change budget Cammeants

Warkforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

I TReceived additiandl prior-year funding which
Adult / Dislocated 52,845,322 $29,599| $2,875,321|increased camy-forword amount,
Projecting highes corry forward funds lata PY
Youth $1,485,776 {sun,non)l $1,375,776 2018
Administration $320, 50| $320,000
Statewide Activities-MWS(| $166,19 $92,300 5358,490Received odditiona! funding for this year
Statawide Apprentkceshlp Coordinators $31,250} [T $31,2501
5P National Emergency Grant $300,000] 50 $300,000{
America's Promise Grant $150,000{ $0j $150,000
Capacity Bullding| §56,71 o] 555.‘7143'
Apprenticaship State Accelarator Grant 56,250 $0 $6,250
Aduit Educatian[Tite i) 570,000 %0, 570,
Wagner-Peyser Employment Service
o Aeceired clocation Intreose of 23,068; 541,801
Included in PY 17 budget; balance in cotry-
Emplayment Services $953,152 $41,477 $994,629|forword
Re-employment Services and EfigibHity
Assessement (RESEA} $39,80 $32,082 §71,885|Received odditians] alfocation
RESEA - Wark-Based Training| 535,877 50 $36,8
Trade Adjustment Assistanca (TAA) $289,396 $42,503 $331,899)Actue aiiocation greater than enticipated.
TAA Admin $14,47 50 $16,595|Actual atiocation greater than antidpoted.
TAA Case Management $101,38 13,876 116, 165|Actual aflocotion greoter than ontidpated.,
Dept. of Health and Human Services
ul [More revenue will be avaliahie this ycor due ta
higher than anticipated carry forword funds fram
PATH [TANF $4,000,00 $175,060, $4,175,000fiast yeor.
PATH / GFGP $386,803] 50 $385,803
PATH Food Asst / Support service $10,945 sni £10,945
State Admin Match Food Assistance $159,237] 50 $159,23
Lest summer's expenses were lower due to
|reduced enroliment; We hove not yet recelved
Foster Care 513,5301 {519,030} 58 500{funding for this £Y yet.
Refugee| 524,709 523,106‘ ﬁ?gT:inmcd odditiono! funding
Other
I Progrom storted later thon onticipoted; most
Families Forward §200,000 ($150,000) 450,000|expenditures witl actur next yeor.
MG 560,000 515,000 5§75,000|Received am increase In our oipcatinn
| Agreements with portners were nol finalized at
Infrastructure Funding Agreement 50 smo,oool $100,000{the thne the origined budget wos prepored
Gronts owarded in Novembrer; aword wos higher
Skilled Trades Tralning $1,800,000§ $1,065,887 $2,865,B87ithan budget due to increased stote appropriation
Gronts awerded In November; aword was higher
Skilled Trades Admin $90,000 $53,294 than budget due to Inerease state opproprition
Community Corrections 000) Budget less then onticipated
$13,756,7
Summary
WIO 65,531,504 §12,299] 55,543,803
Wagner-Peyser Empioyment Seruice]  $1,434,987) 130938 $1,568,050]
Dept. of Health and Human Services]  $4,605,224 §179,070] 54,784,
Other, 52,185,000 51,074,187 53,259,18;
£13,756,715 1,398,613| 515,155,3

3/6/2018



59

Budget Amendment 2 - Expenditures

Annual Budget § Revised Budget 1
IMadification 1 -} Modification2
Sept2017 | Mar. 2018 Net Change Comments
{Expenses
P n Tesu A Tower thon

then enticpoted pay adjustments this year;

Salarles and Fringes 5,000.000 4,229,018 {770,981)|s0me vacant pesitions were not filled,
Expenses lower thon expected from some of

Contractor Expensas 1,500,000 1,880,527 [19,473)|the providers.

SEMCA Prafesslonal Sesvices 450,000 450,000 {0l
|Added some staff development services which

Other Professional Fees 175,000 207,700 32,700 |were not Included In original budget

Trave! 78,000 106,621 28,621 |Trovel expenses higher than projecied
Reclossified some budgeted costs lo other line

Conferences 92,517 53,2581 {39,226} |ems.

Utilities 77,000 99,6086 22,606 JE:penm higher thon budgeted

Office Supplles 40,000 40,000 0

Insurance 55,000 71,228 156,228 |Expenses higher than budgeted
Unexpected costs Jor Building upgrodes ond

|Rent/Leasehold improvements 610,000 660,762 50,762 |property toxes.

Technology 185,000 148,859 {36,141)|Some purchases detayed urlil next budget year
increased costs for snow remavol, lown core,

Repalrs/Maintenence 15,000 65,840 50,840 onitoriol services ond bullding repairs

Meslings 12,600 14,008 2,008 |Expenses higher thun budgeted

Equipment 89,998 71,800 (18,198) |Equipment needs lower than anticlpated
Recelved unanticipated pass-through gront for

Dues/Subscription 70,000 119,175 49,175 |Michigan Worksi Assoclation from the state.
TETYEN TR ETNG EX eSS |
recommendations from consuitant and

Cutreach/Advertlsing 75,000 50,796 15,796 |increcsed fevel of portner sponsarships
Malnly due ta increase In STTF funds and

Participant Tralning & Supporn 4,832,200 &,845,094 2,013,854 |reduced costs of staff.

Total Expenses 5 13,756,715 | § 15,155,328 | § 1,398,613

3f6/2018



MEMORANDUM
Consorfium Board Resolution 17-22
To: Southeast Michigan Consortium Board
From: william S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast
Date: March 14, 2018

Subject: Salary Structure for Michigan Works! Southeast
Board_Action Requesied

It is requested that the Southeast Michigan Consorlium Board apprave a salary
structure for Michigan Works Southeast and the attached implementation
recommendations.

Background

Last year, the Southeast Michigan Works! Consorfium contracted with the firm Arthur
Gallagher and Associates to develop a compensation structure for MWSE which is
characterized appropriate job classifications, a fair and compelitive pay siructure, and
a system for future pay decisions based on fair and documented information. The firm
employs a methodology called ihe Decision Band Method® ({DBM) which provides a
consistent and valid approoch to comparing and contrasting jobs. The DBM sysiem has
been used successfully in both public and private sector organizations as a meaons of
identifying rational distinctions in pay for all jobs. The basic premise of DBM is that the
value of a job to an organizations is based on its level of responsibility, which is reflecied
and therefore measured by the decision-making requirements of the job.

In devising the struciure, the consultant examined the duties and responsibilities of all
positions in the organization and established grades for each position based on the
complexity of the job and the types of decisions typically made in those jobs. The
positions were then benchmarked io the market value using data from a market survey
and other public and private sources. The recommended structure places our positions
in one of 12levels or grades, althoughit crectes a struciure with up to 16 grades to
allow for future growth. There is an established salary range for each grade which
consists of 11 steps, where the median wage is set ot step 6. This range is designed o
give MWSE ialitude to compensate employees within their grade based on their
performance and value to the organization. Since the median wage is set al market
rates, it also gives us the ability to compete for and retain talent.

A compensation committee consisting of workforce board members and the
Consortium Board Chair reviewed ihe consultant's recommended structure as well as
implementation recommendations from staff. Members expressed satisfaction that, for
the most part, our current salaries are competitive with the market, and that the salaries
of nearly all the employees were within the range proposed for their grade. However,
there was considerable discussion aboui how to best implement the consuliant’s
recommendations. Members expressed a strong desire to present a compensation



61

system that rewards employees for their performance on the job, and not just for the
time spent in the job. The commiitee recommends that the salary siructure be
implemenied effective July 1, 2018 per the attached guidelines. Staff is also developing
a compensation policy which will be presented to the Board af its next meefing. A
resolution approving the proposed salary structure and implementation
recommendatlions is aitached.



62

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN CONSORTIUM BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-22

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A SALARY STRUCTURE FOR

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST

The Southeasi Michigan Consortium has been designated as a Michigan
Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by Washtenaw,
Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and the Stote of
Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United Stales
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency (TIA), to
provide employment training and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials from
each of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the “Local
Elected Official” Board for Workforce Development activities; and

The Southeast Michigan Workforce Development Board has been
appointed 1o oversee the operations, grants and coordination of
Workforce Development activities in the counties covered by the
Consoriium; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium coniracted with the firm Arthur
Gallagher and Associates 1o develop a salary structure that has both
internal and external validity.

The salary structure developed by the consultant has been reviewed by a
Compensation Commitiee consisting of members of the Workforce
Development Board and Consortium Board, and

The Compensation Commitiee recommends implementation of a
modified version of the structure and

Approval of this policy requires approval from the Southeast Michigan
Consortium Board.

IT 1S THEREFORE RESOLVED the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board hereby approves

the attached Salory Structure and implementation recommendations for
Michigan Works! Southeast,



63

The Consortium board should adopt the attached salary siructure and compensation
policy for Michigan Works! Southeast. The structure places positions in one of 16 grades
where each grade has 11 steps. Step 6 is set at the median market value for each
position, based on a market analysis. There is a 23% difference between Step | and
Step 11, or about a 2% difference for each siep.

MWSE will establish a performance evaluation sysiem where each employee's
performance will be formally evaluated af least once per yeor. These evaluations will
normally occur at the same fime each year and will coincide with the budgeting cycle.
The evaluation system will rate employees from 1 to 5 on each of ten areas: Job
knowledge, communication skills, judgement, planning and organization, problem
solving, work quality, inferpersonai skifls, teamwerk, and leadership. Those with
supervisory responsibilities are also evaluated on managing people. The rating scale will
be as follows:

1 = Failed 1o Meet Expectiations -~ The employee consistently fails to meet the
requirements of the position

2 = Parlly Met Expectations - The employee is partially proficient in this area, however
growth is necessary to meet expectations

3 = Met Expectations - The employee is proficient in this area as it relates fo their
position

4 = Parlly Exceeded expectalions - The employee is proficient in this area and
occasionally goes above and beyond the requirements of the position

5 = Exceeded Expectations - The employee is proficient in this area and often goes
above and beyond the requirements of the position

Employees must achieve an average raling of 3 or above to be eligible to advance 1o
the next step in their grade. Once an employee reaches the medion (Step é), they will
be held to a higher level of expected performance in order o advance to the next
siep.

A development plan will be implemented for any employee who does not qualify for a
step increase. The employee may be evaluated every 6 monihs until the employee’s
performance meets the standards for a merit increase to the next step. Continued performance below
expectations for the position may result in termination.

To help ensure consistency in the evaluation process, MWSE management will further
define the expectations and performance standards for each position and will provide
fraining to all supervisors.

All salary increases are subject to budget consiraints and must be incorporated into the
annuadl approved budget.



Employees who are promoled will be placed at a step in their new grade that
represents af least a 2.5% increase over their current salary.

with approval of the Director, managers will have the ability to hire new employees of
steps 1, - 4, depending on ihe candidate’s experience and quadlifications. New hires
can be placed above step 5 only with permission of the WD8 Executive Commiliee.

Employees hired after the approval of the salary structure will be placed on the salary
schedule as of their date of hire. All other employees will be placed on the step closest
to and higher than their current salary on July 1.

A systemn of variable pay will be established for members of the management ieam,
based on their balanced scorecard. The Deputy Director will have a maximum
variable pay component of 5% of salory where 1X = 2.5% and 2X = 5%}. Other
members of the management team will have a maximum variable pay component
based on their balanced scorecard of $2,000 {1X = $1,000 and 2X = $2,000).

Employees who are at the last step of the pay scale, but who do not qualify for variable
pay may earn a bonus of up to $1,000 per year based on performance. The criteria for
any such bonus paymenis will be developed by MWSE Director and approved by the
Executive Committee of the WODB.



65

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST SALARY STRUCTURE

STER
1ob Tites Grde 1 2 3 4 5 § 7 5 _ [] 10 11
{No Emom b $27.536 | 528169 | 520802 $29436 | 530,063 530,702 | 531,336 | 531,959 __ii!gﬂl $33236 ) $33869
{No pesitions 2 £30.515 | $31217 | $31.919 | 532621 533323 | 534.025 $34.726 sas‘fzu $36,130 536831 537534
2 {Customer Service Assistant
B Oriver a 3476528 | 3503565 § 3580604 | 3657643 | 3734681 1 3913719 1 INN757 13965796 7934 | 21198.72
@ |Accounting Assistant 4 536483 | 537323 | 538,162 | $39.001 | 533.940 } S40.67% 441,518 | $42357 } 543,196 | 544035 | 344875
B [Cameracvisor S | Sa9as3 | se0371 | S41378 | 542186 | Sa3094 | Sea001 | $44.505 | SASSIS | 346724 1 547,632 L 348533
3 Businass Services Coondinator
§ |Program Analyst
Z JResearch and Education Coondinaior & $47.443 | 543,419 | 544395 | 545371 | $45347 | 47,323 | $48.300 | 545276 5§50,252 | §51.228 | 552,204
JrIm Supervisor 7 $46.174 | 547235 | 548208 9360 | S50AZ1 | 551484 | $52,546 | $53,608 | 554670 | 555732
ministrative Serwces Maniger [ S50.547 | 551812 | 552977 | 654,142 | 555307 | 556472 | $57.637 | SS0.802 | §59.957 } 561,132
Communications Manager
[Fiscal Manager 9 534379 | 555629 | $56880 | $58.131 | $53381 | 560,632 $61883 ) $53.134 | $64.384 | $65635
Human Resources Manager
Policy end Planning Managar
« [Program Services Manager
i Research and Education Mansger
o stems Administraior 10 $57.358 | S58.577 | 539897 561,316 §62.835 | 563.954 | 565274 SGES! 567,812 | 565.231
‘E Busineas Seorvices Mansger
3 11 £60338 | 361,716 563,113 $64,501 SE5,889 §67.277 | SE8.664 | 570 571440 572828
12 $64.05% | 565543 ) 567.016 | 568.490 | 565.963 ] 571437 572910 | 574384 | 575,858 | 577331 |
Infarmation Technology Manager 13 3 | s70119 | s71696 | 73273 | S74849 | 576425 | s78g02 | §79,578 | $81,155 | $52,731
No positions 14 572274 73.936 75.598 I_S?TJEI 578,923 | 580,585 § 582248 83310 SA5.571 | 587335
D_oﬂ_bmw 15 5253 | $76984 | §78,715 | 580446 77 | 583,906 | 585638 | $87363 { 589.100 | 590831
Nao positions 16 578233 | 500.032 | SB1832 | 583.631 | 585430 ] 587.230 29029 | 590820 | 592,628 | 584427




66

13. Resolutions for Consideration by both the Consortium Board- KZ Bolton and
the Workforce Development Board (WDB) - Marcus James

Q.

CB Resolution 17-20

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID
RESPONSE-CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $6.131

WDB RESOLUTION 17-54

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID
RESPONSE

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,131



67

MEMORANDUM
Consortium Board Resolution 17-20
To: Southeast Michigan Consortium Board
From: William S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast

Date: March 14, 2018

Subject Rapid Response- Customer Relationship Management {CRM) grant
award

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board accept funding in an
amount not to exceed %6,131 for the Rapid Response-Customer Relationship
Management grant. The program is projected to run from July 1, 2017 through
June 30, 2018.

Background

The US Department of Labor (DOL) awards states annual Dislocated Worker
formula allocations and allows states to set aside up to 25 percent of these
allocations to support required and allowable State Rapid Response activities. The
Workforce Innovation and Opporiunity Act (WIOA) and USDOL allow additional
flexibility with respect to the use of these funds.

Discussion

This funding is to be used to support existing CRM systems or for the purchase or
renewal of software licenses that will aid in the identification of and information
gathering for potential layofis or opportunities for layoff aversion. This funding is
being made available on a one-time basis as the TIA works on integrating CRM
functionality into the state data system. By using data systems fo identify and
gather information, it allows the local areas to provide assistance fo employers in
managing reductions in force, which may include early identification of firms at risk
of layoffs, assessment of the needs of and opfions for at-risk firms, and the delivery
of services to address these needs.

Staff plan to use these funds for renewing licenses for cusiomer relationship
management such as G*Stars.

Approval of the Rapid Response-Customer Relationship Grant grant funding is
confingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board and Consortium
Board. A Resolution is attached for your consideration.



68

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN CONSORTIUM BOARD
RESOLUTION 17-20

RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID RESPONSE-CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,131

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS.

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a
Michigan Works! area through a P.A, 7 agreement approved by
Washienaw, Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale couniies and
the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consertium is funded by the United Staies
Department of Labor {USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency (TIA).
to provide employment training and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has iwo elected officials
from each of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the
“ocal Elected Official” Board for Workforce Development activities;
and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has
been appointed to oversee the operations, granis and coordination
of Workforce Develapment activities in the counties covered by the
Consortium; and

The State is releasing set aside Rapid Response funds to be used by
the Michigan Worksl Agencies to pay for customer relationship
managemeni software; and

Michigan Works! Southeast will use the funding to help pay for a
system such as G*Stars; and

Funding will be in the amount of $6,131 for the time period 7/1/17
through 6/30/18.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Southeast Michigan Consortium Board hereby

approves acceptance of funds in an amount not fo exceed $6,131 for
the Rapid Response- Customer Relationship Management grant

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of the Southeast Michigan Consortium

Board is authorized 1o sign the Approval Request form and any other
documenis necessary for implementation of this program.



69

MEMORANDUM
WDB Resolutfion 17-54
To: Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
From: william S. Sleight, Director, Michigan Works! Southeast

Date: March 7, 2018

Subject: Rapid Response- Customer Relafionship Management (CRM) Grant
award

Board Action Requested

It is requested that the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board
accept funding in an amount not fo exceed $6,131 for the Ropid Response-
Customer Relationship Management grant. The pragrom is projected to run from
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.

Background

The US Department of Labor [DOL) awards states annual Dislocated Worker
formula allocations and allows states to set aside up to 25 percent of these
allocations to support required and allowable State Rapid Response aclivities. The
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA} and USDOL allow additional
flexibility with respect to the use of these funds.

Discussion

This funding is to be used to support existing CRM systems or for the purchase or
renewal of software licenses that will aid in the identification of and information
gathering for potential layoffs or opportunifies for layoff aversion. This funding is
being made available on a ane-time basis as the TIA works on integrating CRM
functionality into the state data system. By using data systems to identify and
gather information, it allows the local areas to provide assistance to employers in
managing reductions in force, which may include early identification of firms at risk
of layoffs, assessment of the needs of and options for at-risk firms, and the delivery
of services to address these needs.

Siaff to use these funds will be used for renewing licenses for customer relationship
management such as G*Stars.

Approvai of the Rapid Response-Customer Relationship Grant fundingis
contingent upon approval by the Workforce Development Board and Consortium
Board. A Resolufion is attached for your consideration.



70

MICHIGAN WORKS! SOUTHEAST WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD

RESOLUTION 17-54

RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAPID RESPONSE-CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,131

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHERAS,

WHERAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

The Southeast Michigan Consortium has been designated as a
Michigan Works! area through a P.A. 7 agreement approved by
Washtenaw, Livingston, Jackson, Lenawee and Hillsdale counties and
the State of Michigan; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium is funded by the United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) and the Talent Investment Agency (TIA),
to provide employment training and placement services; and

The Southeast Michigan Consortium Board has two elected officials
from each of the five counties in the Consortium and serves as the
“Local Elected Official" Board for Workforce Development activilies;
and

The Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce Development Board has
been appointed to oversee the operations, grants and coordination
of Workforce Development activilies in the counties covered by the
Consorlium; and

The Siate is releasing set aside Rapid Response funds to be used by
the Michigan Works! Agencies to pay for customer relationship
management software; and

Michigan Works! Southeast will use the funding to help pay for a
system such as G*Stars: and

Funding will be in the amount of $4,131 for the fime period 7/1/17
through 6/30/18.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED the Michigan Works! Southeast Workiforce Development

Board hereby approves acceptance of funds in an amount not to
exceed $6.131 for the Rapid Response- Customer Relationship
Management grant

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED thaf the Chair of the Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce

Development Board is authorized to sign the Approval Request form
and any other documents necessary for implementation of this
program.



71

14. Committee Report

a.

®000

Execulive Commitiee Report — Marcus James - Chair

-February 7, 2018 Execufive Commitiee Meeting

-March 7. 2018 Executive Committee Meeting

Employer Services - Richard Currie, Chair

Job Seeker Services — Leann Will, Chair

Career and Educational Advisory Council ([CEAC) — Kevin Oxley, Chair
Compliance, Finance and Operations (CFO) - Lynn Matzen, Chair



72

Workforce Development Board
Executive Commitiee Meeting
February 7, 2018, 2:00pm — 4:00pm
Chelsea Comfort Inn, Village Conference Center
1645 Commerce Park Drive, Chelsea, Ml 48118

Prasent: Richard Currie, Vice Chair via conference call

Sean Duval

Donald Germann via conference call
Marcus James, Chair

Lynn Matzen

Scott Menzel

Sharon Miller via conference call
Grace Trudell via conference call

Absent: Leann Wilt

i.

Call to order
Marcus James, Chair called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.

Roll Call
Quorum Present

Approval of Agenda

Marcus James call for a motion to approve ihe Agenda.

MOTION: Scolt Menzel moved to approve the Agenda with changes as discussed
to the order of agenda liems.

SUPPORT: Lynn Matzen

MOTION CARRIED

4. Consent Agenda Marcus James call for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.

MOTION: Lynn Matzen moved to approve ihe Consent Agenda.

SUPPORT: Sean Duval

MOTION CARRIED
a. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-47
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOQA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR JONESVILLE TOOL AND MANUFACTURING [N THE AMOUNT OF
$2.243.

b. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-48

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND
OPPORTUNITY ACT {WIOA} INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING FUNDS FOR MMI
ENGINEERED SOLUTION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,035

¢. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-49
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR CASTER CONCEPTS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,425



73

d. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-50
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR EBERBACH IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,652

e. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-51
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FY 2017 WIOA INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING
FUNDS FOR MELLING TOOL COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,745

5. Action ltems - Resolutions for Consideration — Michigan Works! Southeast
Warkforce Development Board (WDB)
Marcus James call for @ motion {o opprove WDB Resolution 17-46
a. MOTION: Scott Menzel moved to approve WDB Resolution 17-46 approving
Talent Investment Agency {TIA) award of Skilled Trades Training Funds {STTF) for
FY 2018 October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018 for the Michigan Works!
Southeast Workforce Development Board
SUPPORT: Richard Curie
Discussion.
MOTION CARRIED

Marcus James call for a motion to approve WDB Resolution 17-52

b. MOTION: Lynn Matzen moved to approve WDB Resolution 17-52
Memorandum of Understanding {MOU) with Workforce Intelligent Network {WIN)
a renewal of existing MOU

SUPPORT: Sharon Miller

Discussion

MOTION CARRIED

Marcus James call for a motion to approve WDB Resolution 17-53

c. MOTION: Sean Duval moved to WDB Resolution 17-53 approving additional
funds in the amount of $15,500 for Small Business Development Center
SUPPORT: Scott Menzel

Discussion.

Lay on the Table

4. Committee Reports

a. Employer Services - Rick Currie, Chair
Rick Cunie reviewed Employer Services Committee repori.
Discussion.

b. Job Seeker Services — Leann Wilt, Chair
Marcus James reviewed Job Seeker Committee report. Discussion.

c. Career and Educational Advisory Council {CEAC) - Scott Menzel
Scott Menzel provided update on CEAC. Discussion.

d. Compliance, Finance and Operations (CFQ) - Lynn Matzen, Chair
Lynn Maizen reviewed CFO Committee report. Discussion.

e. Board Development Commitiee - Sean Duval
No updaties.



74

7. Direcior Report

Q.

Discussion of RFP process for PY 2018

Bill Sleight provided recommendations for coniract exiension or going out
seeking Request for Proposal (RFP}. Discussion. Formal request for board
action to either extend Coniract or 1o go out for RFP at joint board
meeting on March 14 2018,

Compensation Committee Updaie

Bill Sleight provided update on Compensaiion Commitiee Meeting.
Meeting scheduled to continue review of consultant recommendation.
Plon to provide recommendation to the Southeast Consortium Board at
the March 14 board meeting.

. Marketing Update

Nicole Bell provided Communications updaie. Discussion.

Families Forward Update

Bill Steight reported the program Coniract is planned to begin April.
Referrals from Friend of the Court/Jackson County. Discussion.
Summer 18 updaie

Shamar Herron provided update. Discussion.

Michigan Works! Associalion - 2018 Planning session update

Bill Steight provided update on planning session. Discussion

9. Public Comment
Marcus James offered Public Comment. No Public Comment.

10. Adicurnment
Meeting adjourned at 4:02 p.m.



Wworkforce Development Board
Executive Committee Meeting
March 7, 2018, 2:00pm - 4:.00pm
Chelsea Comfort Inn, Village Conference Center
1645 Commerce Park Drive, Chelsea, Ml 48118

Present; Richard Currie, Vice Chair via conference call
Sean Duval
Donold Germann via conference call

Marcus Jlames, Chair
Scott Menzel

Sharon Miller

Leann Wil

Absent: Lynn Matzen
Grace Trudell

Staff: Bill Sleighi
Shamar Herron
Nicole Bell
Dan Childs
Jim Couiu
Maggie Flaherty

I. Callio order
Marcus James, Chair called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call
Quorum Present.

3. Approval of Agenda
No Objections. Agenda Approved.

4. Approval of February 7, 2018 Executive Committee Minutes
Marcus James call for a motion to approve the February 7, 2018 Executive
Committee Meeting Minutes.
MOTION: Donald Germann moved to approve the February 7, 2018 Executive
Commitiee Meeting Minutes.
SUPPORT: Richard Currie
MOTION CARRIED



76

5. Consent Agenda
Marcus James asked if there were any Consent Agenda items be placed on the
Action ltems. None. Marcus James call for a motion o approve the Consent
Agenda.

MOTION: Leann Wilt moved to approve the Consent Agenda.
SUPPORT: Don Germann
MOTION APPROVED

4. Action Items - Resolutions for Consideration — Michigan Works! Southeasi
Workforce Developmeni Board {WDB)
Q. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-53
A RESOLUTION APPROVING ADDITIONAL FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$15,500 FOR SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTER

Marcus James call for a motion to approve WDB Resolulion 17-53.

MOTION: Leann Wilt moved to approve WDB Resolution 17-53 the additional
funds in the amount of $15,500 for Small Business Development Cenler.
Discussion.

MOTION APPRQVED

b. WDB RESOLUTION 17-54
A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF FUNDS FOR RAFPID
RESPONSE CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT
OF $6.131

Marcus James call for a motion to approve WDB Resolution 17-54

MOTION: Scott Menzel moved to approve WDB Resolution 17-54 the
acceptance of funds for Rapid Response Customer Relationship Management in
the amount of $4,131.

Discussion.

MOTION APPROVED

7. Commitiee Reports

a. Employer Services - Richard Currie, Chair
Rick Currie reviewed the March 5, 2018 Employment Service Commitiee
minutes. Rick explained the process for incumbent Worker Training (IWT) funds
applications. Rick reported on the Employer Services Commitiee Aclion Plan.
Discussion regarding the RACI.

b. Job Seeker Services - Leann Wilt, Chair
Leann Wilt reviewed the February 15, 2018 Job Seeker Services Commitiee
minutes. Discussion.

c. Career and Educational Advisory Council [CEAC) — Scott Menzel
Scott Menzel reported on Talent invesiment Agency (TIA} policy regarding
the CEAC. Reviewed the recommended CEAC Appoinimentis.
Appointments require approval by Workforce Development Board.
Discussion.



i

d. Compliance, Finance and Operations {CFO} - Lynn Matzen, Chair
Marcus James reviewed the Februory 26, 2018 CFO Commitiee minufes.
Bill Sleight reviewed the proposed Budget Amendment.
Discussion.

Marcus James call for a motion to recommend to the Consortium Board 1o
approve the proposed Budget Amendmenit.

MOTION: Richard Curie moved to recommend 1o the Consortium Board
approval of the proposed Budget Amendment.

SUPPORT: Sharon Miller

Discussion.

MOTION CARRIED

8. Chair Report

a. Workforce Development Board {WDB) Vacancies - Recommendations fo
the Consortium Board
Bill Sleight reviewed the nominee information for Workforce Development
Board vacancies. Vacancies include Business/Private Sector and Adult
Education/Higher Education Sector. Discussion.
Marcus Jomes call for a motion to recommend to the Consortium Board
the nominee to fill the WDB Adult Education/Higher Education Secior
vacancy.
MQOTION: Scott Menzel moved to recommend fo the Consortium Board
that Dr. Rose Bellanca, President, Washtenaw Community College fill the
Adult Education/Higher Education Secior vacancy on the Workforce
Development Board.
SUPPORT: Sharon Miller
Discussion.
No - Don Germann
MOTION CARRIED

Marcus James call for a motion 1o recommend to the Consortium Board
the nominee to fill the WDB Private Sector/Business Sector vacancy.
MQOTION: Sean Duval moved to recommend to the Consortium Board that
Shawn Planko, Engineering Manager, Expedia fill the Business/Private
Sector vacancy on the Workforce Development Board.
SUPPQORT; Scott Menzel
Discussion.
No - Dongld Germann
MOTION CARRIED

b. Draft 2018 Dashboard
Reviewed the draft 2018 Dashboard, Discussion.

9. Director Report
a. Discussion of Request for Proposal (RFP) process for PY 2018
i. Bill Sleight reviewed the bid process for RFP for Specialized Youth
Services. Discussion.



78

Marcus James call for a mofion fo recommend authorizing release of the
RFP for Specialized Youth Services.
MOTION: Sharon Miller moved to recommend authorizing release of the
RFP for Specialized Youth Services.
SUPPORT: Richard Currie
Discussion
MOTION CARRIED
ii. Bill Sleight reviewed the bid process for Speciolized Business
Services. Discussion.
Marcus James call for a motion o recommend authorizing release of the
RFP for Specialized Business Services.
MOITON: Leann Wilt moved to recommend authorizing the release of the
RFP for Specialized Business Services.
SUPPORT: Sean Duval
Discussion
MOTION CARRIED

b. Compensation Committee Update
Bill Steight provided Compensalion Committee recommendations.

Discussion.
Marcus James call for a motion to recommend to the Consortium Board
approval of the Michigan Works! Southeast Salary Structure.,
MOTION: Leann Wilt moved to recommend to the Consorium Board
approval of the Michigan Waorks! Southeast Salary Structure.,
SUPPORT: Sean Duval
Discussion.
MOTION CARRIED.
c. Govemnor Snyder's "Marshall Plan”
Sharon Miller provided update on Governor Snyder's “Marshall Plan™.
Discussion.
d. Regional and Local Plan Updates
Bill Sleight provided timelines for updates to the Regiona! and Local Plan.
Discussion.
e. Oiher
Bill Sleight provided updaie on Partner Meetings held on March 5 and 6.
The meetings were facilitaled by Thomas P. Miller and Associates, One
Stop Operator. Discussion.
Bill Sleight reporied on the MICareer Quest Southeast Kick-Off March 1,
2018 at the Oakland Michigan Works! that he and Jim Coutu attended,
Discussion.

10. March 14, 2018 Agenda. Joint Meeting of Michigan Works! Southeast Workforce
Development Board and Southeast Michigan Consortium Board.

11. Public Comment
Marcus James call for Public Comment. No Public Comment.

12. Adjournment-Meeting adjourned at 4:08 p.m.



79

S20) SINWWOD ISMIN

ulAdy JPULGHY |

*UOARIUNMUILLOD ABM-OM ]
"uE} $1UCNIT JO LDISIIOP [BUY § IO PINSUOD Bq OF (SHENRIRUL B L

Hooq my) vy, ipensuolD ]

‘Ayanae ug of paufijsse aq uea v, B0 ALD
“oian )0 samod pue US4 SBPNUL— HGEIINDI3Z ARIBILIN 5] OUM [ENPIMPY] BYL

OB UO[SIORQ RV, epqetunczay [T

‘paeys ag ued 3 ‘Lossed HGEINOIIE Y1 Aq paulep S Anmisucdsa 1o aatap ayy
vopewswad 10U BO(IE 10) AGIFUCdE Ajrewlsy Aanse ur uuociad oum (ENENPR P

oWy, 800, emisuodsey [ |

=
(SRR

1

g SIUBI PUE SJUOPNYS ) SRNTSHEG J6aleD [0 JGUINU aseadil|
EIADI0ALS [FUOIA] JO BDRIBATS B) amsug

FWIOMON SOMOtoY BEATIUIT JO SSaUBAIa)je ainsu3]
E.%aﬂmgguﬂoﬂﬂgm

paliEhue pUB BARDE BIE -ﬂﬂﬁlﬂoﬂ.on

vaﬁnbuﬁuo&%aﬂ%hio!g

woeyd Uj 5] [UeE sy Brepdaidde ametg|

BAIIO1J0 GIE SOUTGA [SUOHIERG0 ISMW aInsul

S)XD +G6 ._0 E aseanu|

STRD PUT SORWDE UBZNP BUILTe) 500 PUR BIJ JO JOqUIny 9SEBI0U|

SUOREJLIED ISH JO JBGILINI BSEIIU]

O = =] =] =] =] =] =] = =] =i -
-l

sipo JO0LT5-J0-10 0 JBQUITR) BSEasoU]

P00 IoEGpE A0 G M 8aUBYUT

. weibosd p3 ynpy 0 SEOUBAPIO)J8 BINEU
LRI J0) avpe)e B SO[EATE U S100) d J8BIET) BINsug

.....

T
Eoouuzououeooeox

Goia 1 pasnbal oie qweon TBUDPRE SIS AFIUEP]

5K G- ISMN ) pUe dopndg

soAnRI BY-LLOZ B4M W3S

SORIAMITY

sr0z-187h
1OVY 80T GN3aXT B4M W3S
QLoZivIE



80

215118

Employer Services Committee 200 M

Conference Call

Mgaeting called by:  Shamar Hermon Type of masting: Commiliee Meeting

Facliitator: Rick Currle Note taker: Marsha M=adows

Timakeeper: Rick Currie

Attendeas: Rick Currie, Shamar Herron, Blll Sieight, Jim Coutu, Sharon Miller, Phil Santer, Don Germann

Marsha Meadows

Minutes

Agenda itam: MWT Process

Slrategic Plan Objeclives (emali-
Balanced Scorecard 2017-2018)

Discusslon:

. WT

a. Scoring (3 minimum to review-Rick, Don and Donna and then rolale 2 third mamber of committee)
b. Process

c. Ovarsight

2. Strategic Plan and Objectives for the Committee

a. Elament 1

Establish MWSE as the loca! leader in workforce development, so thal pariners come to us firsl when there ara
workforce issues

Actions: Increase visibility of MWSE in community by actively engaging wilh Chambers of Commerce and
similar business crganizations. Wil reguiarly atiend events, and participate In tatent atiraction and ratention
aclivities.

Continua both formal and informal parinerships and collaboration with aconomic Davelopmenl pariners.
ldentify key seclor initiatives

Task: Staff to develop a liat of formal partnerships

Effactively promole Michigan Works! Southeast's role and sarvices to the community

b. Element 2

Cullivale employer relationships by activa outreach and quatity, consistan, data-driven services.
Actions: Understand and develop the MWSE value proposition lo engage local employars
Communicate and demanstrale the value proposition

¢. Element 3

Leverage inlemal and axtamal resources lo ensure consistent, high quallty services ara made available to all
cuslomers.

Actions: Deliver high quality workforce services through a combination of innovative and evidence-based
approaches that are customer-focused and provide the supports necessary fo ensure customer SUCCESS.
Task: To view data gathared

d. Element 4

Foster board and staff development to leverage Innovation and maximize the ecanomic impact of workforce
funding and resources



81

Actions: Davelop board members so they can coniribule to MWSE misston
Task: develop a co-chalr position on tha board

3. Appreniiceships
a. Sub-Commitlee-raview
b. Apprenticeship Coordinalor {Elizabeth Steele)
c. Working with WCC (Marilyn) on non-irad|ional apprenticeships

4. Sharon Miller is slepping down from the committee as she has been asked lo serve on the Career Educalion
Advisory Cammittea.

NEXT MEETING:
The next mesting is schaduled for Monday, 3/5/2018 In person.

Conclusions:

1. IWT Procass and Implementation
a. (ross Annual Sales
b. Justification on Tralning

IWT Appraval Review - Consent ltems Canclusions:
Washtenaw -MM! Englnaering: STTF on hold; 521 ,000.00 189% In kind 16 people, 6 trainings, $1300.00 each; LEAN
{Auditor lralning

Jackson - Melling Tool: STTF on hold; §1 0,745.00 73% no loss production noled; $60, 000.00, 15 people, $783.00 each
FundamenlaVGT&E In house iraining

Jackson (Cathaun County) - Caster Concepls: §6425.00 entry lavel co. 106 % in kind 2 Irainings, 5 people $1285.00 per
person measurement / biuepsint training

Washtenaw — Eberbach: denigd STTF $14,652.00 134% 8 people $1628.00 per person In house iralning

Jim 1o email Maggla Flaherty.



82

315118

Employer Services Committee 2100 oW

Confarence Catl

Mesting called by:  Shamar Herron Type of maeeting: Committee Meeting
Facilitator: Rick Currie Note taker: Marsha Meadows
Timekeeper: Rick Currie

Attendees: Shamar Herron, Bill Sleight, Jim Coutu, Amby Wilbanks, Marsha Meadows

Phona: Rick Currle, Phif Sanler, Deb Polich, Don Germann

Minutes

Agenda item: IWT Process
Matrix Action llems and Brainstorming for the year
Measures and Quitcomes

Discussion:

1. MWT Grant Process
a. Application Review form
b. Proposal Evaluation form
c. Reviewed by Jim, Rick, Don and rolate a third member of committee
St Joseph Mercy Health

IWT Appraval Review - Cansent ltemns Conclusions:

Jackson County - St. Joseph Mercy Health: $1860,00, B people $816.00 per person non-lraditional slerile processing,
capslone class

Livingston County (Brighlon) — Fortech Products: $7800.00, 18 people 195% in-kind, process mapping and mentaring
Livingston County {Pinckney) — an hold — public entity, looking for other funding streams.

2. Strategic Plan and Objectives for the Committee
a. Element 1
Increase visibility of MWSE in the Communily by aclively angaging with locat Chambers of Commerce and
simitar organizations.
Task: Jim to report out: Chamber of Commerce attend Annual Meelings and Community Events, currently
approximately 200 engagements.
Action: Jim to Report monthly who are our pariners and what are their key events.

b. Element 2

Develop and maintain formal and informal partnerships

Task: Provide templale and reports manthly

Actions: Jim to report out monthly and provide update regarding aclivities. GAAR Report



c. Element 3

Work with the Marketing manager {o develop and implement a Marketing plan
Task: Jim lo set up a mesting with the marketing Leader
Action: Meeting with Marketing Leaders at 3:00 p.m. 3/5/2018

3. Sub-commitiee for apprenticeships
Task: Jim to provide an overview at the next meating
Action: Jim to provide list to Executive committee

4. Matrix

Task: Measures from Dashboard
Action: Jim to recommend focus

NEXT MEETING:
The naxt meating is scheduled for Monday, 4/2/2018 via phone.

83



INCUMBENT WORK PROGRAM
APPLICATION REVIEW FORM

Applicant’s Name: l

1 Date: :

Please describe purpose and need for this training.

Funds Requested: | | # of Employees to be trained: | |

Is the per trainee cost within established guideline? Yes : No :

Is the total request within established guideline? Yes E No :

If no on either of the

previous questlans,

please explain why an

exception Is being

made.

Who is the Training Provider: | |

Why was this provider salected:

What are the expected outcomes of this training?

Wi this training result in ndustry recognlized certification? Yes E No :

ts this tralning part of a comprehensive training plan or strategy? Yes E No :

Will this training result in: Layoff aversion Yes E No :
Increased employment Yes : No :
Other economlc benefits  Yes ': No :

Additional Comment:

Submitted by: |

84



Employer Services Committee Review

Not
o Ll Approved
Business Service Manager
Not
L Approved
Employer Services Chalr
Not
Approved Approved
Committee Representative
A d Not
pprove Approved

Committee Representative

If not approved, or forward to Committes for review, please indicate concemns or additional Information required:

Forward for
Committes

rorwara ror
Committee

Forward for
Committee

Forward ror
Comemittee

85



RLOZ/LE Blepdn
uBld UORDY §10Z/L10Z BeRjwLLO) SB3|Aleg Jakojdwg



87

Hi8/18

Job Seeker Committee T

Jackson Sarvice Center

Meeting called by:  Shamar Herron Type of meating: Committee Meeting

Facilitator: Leann Wiit Note taker: Vicki Enriquez

Timekeeper: Leann Wilt

Attendees: Leann Wilt, Marcus James, Angela Parth, John Salyer, Bill Sleight, Shamar Herron, Sandy

Vallance, Vicki Enriquez

Minutes

Agenda itemn: Job Seeker Commiittee Purpose

Discussion:

NoOoswh s

Review Metrics for all 3 categories of 16-24, Returning Seniors and Returning Citizens
Referrals, Enroliments and Complelions are the metrics

Review Reparts

Check into increasing enroliments into Adult Ed Program

Discussed the use of the term “Retuming Seniors” and age range

Trend Data for comparison on metrics

How o measure effectiveness of commitlee.

Conclusions:

1. Melrics are the same for all 3 groups, referrals, enrollments and completions. (complelions are defined by exil to
employment-retention will be an Employer Service area}

2. For all 3 groups, Sandy will confirm with Robin thal referral page on G*Stars and If it is Vicki will run report, to
review at next meeting, amount of referrals from pariner agencies la decide if anything needs to be addressed.
Viicki will run report to show successful completions to enroliment percenlages for next meeting.

3. Reports show ratio of entry to the service centers to enroliments in programs and iabor padicipation rates in
comparison to entry of service center.

4. Vicki and Sandy will contact Pam G to coordinate numbers for next meeling lo see if a 10% increase is feasible
based on enrollment to completion.

5. Think about new term for “Returning Seniors” and the age range for this group is §5-74 per stalistics for labor
force participation rate

6. Vick will run a report for *16 and '17 for a rend analysis between the 2 years

7. The completion rate will show how effective the commiltee Is.

NEXT MEETING:

The next meeting is scheduled for mesting Is scheduled for 2/15/18 in Jackson from 10-12.



88

2115118

Job Seeker Committee T

Jackson Sarvice Center

Meeting called by: Leann Type of meeting: Committee Maeting

Facilitator: Leann Note taker: Vicki Enriquez

Timekeeper: Leann

Attendaes: Leann Wilt, Angela Parth and Slave Girardin, Bill Sleight, Sandy Vallance, Vicki Enriquez
Minutes

Agenda ltems:  Senior Group Name, Dashboards, Committee Success, Dashboard Leads,Meeling Schedule

Discussion:

1.
2.

GG e

Finalize name for the senior group
The 3 dashboards created, one for each group.
a. What needs to be at the top?
b. What needs lo be measured?
c. Does funding need to be included?
d. Parner Referrals?
e. Returning citizen count
Can the Board halp with referrals?
Discussed Commiltee charter and siralegic plan
Who is in charge of the dashboards once finalized?
What will the commitlee meeting schedules be?
Next meeling

Conclusions:

Group decided that senior group will be referred to the 55+ group from now on.
The commitlee decided that all 3 dashboards will -
a. Measure how many QObtained High Schoo! Equivalency, Obtained Training and Obtained Employment
on the top as headers.
b. Count enrollments for each program, total, then determine how many completed one or more of the
above calegaries
c. Funding is not needed, it is not broken down by age 1o be able to determine what is being spent for each
group.
d. Partner referrals will be taken off at this time. Centers will need to have a better tracking system for
referrals in order to count. Potential Thomas P. Miller.
a. Siaff will need to be more diligent about enlering as a barrier when delermined to ensure a belter count
The Board can help with referrals, Commitiee looking for ideas on how to inform them on the programs to help
push referrals

4. Bili will send a copy of the charier and slralegic plan for committee. Sandy will update the strategic plan with
actions already taken or planned

5. Vicki wili keep the program numbers updated in the finished dashboards, Sandy will keep the programs and
activities updated and Leann will update the metrics and reformat with the new information determined in the
meeting.

6. Bill suggested that the commitiee continue to meet in person monthly for now, then move to bl-monthly In person
and altemating month's meel via phone conference. Quarterly meelings tend to lose focus.

7. The revised dashboard wil be sent out a waek prior to the meeting along with the agenda. Discussions for the
next meeting will include strategic plan. The regionat and annual plans may need to be discussed as well,

NEXT MEETING:

The March meeting is scheduled for 3/21/18 in Jackson from 10-12. The April meeling is scheduled for 4/18.



89

Required Sector Nominee Qrganization Term
Local WDB Member
Jeremy Frew Jackson Ending June 30,
Community 2019
College
Employer Sharon Miller Consumers Energy | Ending June 30,
Representing In- 2020
demand Industries
Employer Bill Rayl Jackson Area Ending June 30,
Representing In- Manufacturers 2021
demand Industries Association
Employer Tim Rogers Enterprise Group Ending June 30,
Representing In- 2020
demand Industries
Labor Grace Trudell IBEW Ending June 30,
2019
Local School District Washienaw ISD- Ending June 30,
offering CIE or Kevin Upton Lincoln School 2020
Adult Education
Career and Jack Townsley Lenawee ISD Ending June 30,
Technical 2021
Education Michelle Radcliff Livingsion ESA Ending June 30,
Administrators 2019
Post Secondary Jack Bidlack Eastern Michigan Ending June 30,
Institution University 2020
Linda Blakey Washienaw Ending June 30,
Community 2021
College
Intermediate

School District Scoit Menzel Washtenaw ISD Ending June 30,
2019
Public School Kevin Oxley Jackson ISD Ending June 30,
Parent 2020
Academic Jonathon Tobar Hillsdale ISD Ending June 30,
Educator 2021
Tim Jackson Washienaw ISD Ending June 30,
2019
Cari Bushinski Northwest Schools | Ending June 30,
2020
Other Matt Shane MSU Extension Ending June 30,
202)
Tim Rogers The Enterprise Ending June 30,
Group 2019




90

Compliance, Finance and Operations (CFO) committee Meeting Minutes
January 29, 2018

2 Pm Jackson Service Center- Francis Roem

Members

Lynn Matzen, Owner, Chair Matrix Systems

Mindy Bradish-Orta, President/CEQ Jackson County Chamber
James Van Doren, Executive Director Lenawee Now

Staff

Bill Sleight Director, MWS5E
Cordelia Gonzalez, Staff Lead Fiscal Manager, MWSE

Members Present: Lynn Matzen
Staff Present: Bill Sleight, Cordelia Gonzalez
The meeting was called to order at 2 p.m. by Lynn Matzen

Matt Sandstrom and Swatee Kulkarni retired from the board thus are no longer on the CFO committee.
Discussion on recruiting new members. Lynn Matzen is reaching out t0 other board members to fill the
commitiee slots.

The committee reviewed the reports which were sent out prior to meeting for review.

Consolidated income Statement: Several questions were raised by Lynn Matzen. We compared the YTD
State revenue for December 2016 and December 2017 . Bill clarified that the difference is how we were
required to use State GF/GP funding first, before the Federal funds for PATH. The current year did not
have this requirement. Also the State STTF grant expenses impacted the increase in revenues this year.
We also discussed the Technology expenses and what projects will be implemented and other IT costs.
Bill said he would invite Robin Aldrich, our IT manager to a future meeting to talk about our technology
and other operational vulnerabilities.

Lynn asked if we should only produce guarterly reports instead of monthly reports. He said the
committee can review financials and give the board a summary instead of giving reports to them each
month. Lynn will have a discussion with Marcus about this.

MWSE non Profit Account: The Financial Statement for the non-profit account was presented and
reviewed. Fund equity as of December 2017 is at $44,314.13 for this account.

Audit -We discussed the Plante Maran Audit. There were 2 findings. {1) SEMCA was having difficulty
reconciling with Hillsdale ISD on the beginning balances and were not able to produce an accurate
balance sheet. (2) MWSE 501{3)c (non -profit) account should be incorporated in the balance sheet.



91

Plante Moran still has to complete the Single Audit (Federal Grants} which is due by March 31, 2018,
Plante Moran was asked to come to the March board meeting to discuss the Audit.

Monitoring Report — Cycle il monitor was completed. 2 findings. (1) SEMCA had too much cash on
hand for some of the grants. This occurred because we changed the way costs were allocated at the end
of the fiscai year, which resulted in some of the grants having too much cash on hand. The excess cash
was refunded to the state. Also, (2) we had a finding on not choosing the lowest price on a minor repair
project in Jackson. it was determined if we do not choose the lowest price an a quote, we have go out
for bid indicating the parameters on choosing a vendor. This is now incorporated into our purchasing
procedures. Our response to both findings was accepted by the state and no further action is required.

The meeting adjourned at 3 pm.



92

Plante Moran still has to complete the Single Audit {Federal Grants) which is due by March 31, 2018.
Plante Moran was asked to come to the March board meeting to discuss the Audit.

Monitoring Repart — Cycle lll monitor was completed. 2 findings. {1) SEMCA had too much cash on
hand for some of the grants. This occurred because we changed the way costs were allocated at the end
of the fiscal year, which resulted in some of the grants having too much cash on hand. The excess cash
was refunded to the state. Also, {2) we had a finding on not choosing the lowest price on a minor repair
project in Jackson. it was determined if we do not choose the [owest price on a quate, we have go out
for bid indicating the parameters on choosing a vendor. This is now incorporated into our purchasing
procedures. Our response to both findings was accepted by the state and no further actlon is required.

The meeting adjourned at 3 pm.



93

glou/s/t

-ﬂ- LT3

Vs'in

T | vosdng yamd Tumess urdirisd
it S IARY ARG

vopdpasgas i

eandnty

vlupengy

L IEN

Aooupa)

B - 103 Pupgegivml

TNLUNRY

fadng S0

Lt L]

AR

pasi)

TIHASS Lauy i
W | Jﬂu]?;ﬂ_llﬂu

UM [INOTHRCA YIYEE

YIas

L IUT] MO

g {uoimel

i)y

wasy 210

e sy

TRRAGH

£102 1§ rvqueisg Rupul poyed )

JUHIBIEL BLIGOW PR EPUILE)
ARSI USSROAN 1TAIRN0E



Scmrthect Michigan Onntortium
Schedule of Facazal & Stxta Fundirg
For Pariod Erciing December 31, 2007

]
|
|
s

_Actoals

t
E
{
3

i
i
Bty

B
g T

WIOA Ackilt IS
WIS TRfarted Wrsker =78
WIOA Youh 107,611

M TR TRTITT :

o BRRE. aleRE B8

¢ ff88

Fih

&
]

E
}
£
e ppe. (g
i b
:

E

94



95

| e e ———— e e m——— e
L'sos'e yet'est’t ses'ose saqusdeg thol
syl om'es ot SOpULpARS
i beL'st asup|redrg 150 itd Wedping
198 LTE8Y V5] sarUatyg Bkl
Fiigs] 'y sshiot BTSN SPRPAY sTea N Wedpried

1o S Ty T vES'LS A hoddng Wwedppy
58y STt 14 weiiddng BuHL g THUNEI bwiterty
e . ar's eayddng Supse] R apbsi wedord

aiAZTOT  aiAptoz  aiwLrae
AquEg  depbmey  laquiesg
2101 "TE Jonuueaag Ruing popisg Jo)

feq poddag 9 Sulners Yndiwiad jo o npaps
anpisiie) BEIPA IRsgnes



96

b0 1474 - 1IN0 00438 Y] VOIM

526°09 TLESE 102's 1INOA {0435 JO INO VOIM

L28'05 £50'ST TOL'E Sqof jeuopisuel)

0Ly ry'se €9L'T 23ualsdNg WO
alA QLN

LI07 JquIasd  BTOZ JHeN( 4108 Jsqumeg

102 ‘TR Jequiessy 9_._“.5 popug Jog
5150) pejejey Aiejss Jundipiuied jo apnpeyas
wagossc] veS[uojg eatines



97

Ly LTyl

il el i

OIS _gm (13

T 6 ¢ [ Y1) 0
Py CE T L I e L
3 ESJ (i1 [rstis i B 6T 57 5

=] Ec.z (131 Baz{1 FILrE BE"yi T

niy D053 35{i 7 T HYLS W

oY Eﬂz. 1 e S ts

[ E T/ T (=T TTE 1T _ﬂmﬂ.a [aTTE1H T
TS FECLELLLS (G T G I A G i T D0
(I MINS [esOmeiors | FEATERLE ST E0ts

TS LASILY

OGP P RELS
_mﬂ.mﬂm

1

[ ORI oL X

ATOF B e 1 Bty | 7 wag 20 sy passaidy




WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD -~ 501{C}{3)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDING Novesnber 30, 2017

BALANCE SHEET
* CASH $ 4431433
=== — 4
FUND EQUITY 5 44,31413
= ——
INCOME AND EXPENSE STATEMENT
WTEREST INCOME 035
Miscellanenus- Ralmbursement for SEMCA Y6000
TOTALREVENUE S . 96035
- EXPENDITURES ~
TOTAL EXPENDITURES s -
REVENUES IN EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES $ 96035



99

Compliance, Finance and Operations {CFO) committee Meeting Minutes
February 26, 2018

2 PM Jackson Service Center- Francis Room

Attendance

Board members

Lynn Matzen, Owner, Chair Matrix Systems
James Van Doren, Executive Director Lenawee Now

Phil Sponsler, President Orbitform

Marcus James, Owner, WDB Board Chair Stable inc. LLC

Staff

Bill Sleight Director, MWSE
Cordelic Gonzalez, Stoff Lead Fiscal Manager, MWSE
Robin Aldrich IT Manager, MWSE

The meeting was called to order at 2 p.m. by Lynn Matzen

At the January 26% meeting, Lynn hod asked about MWSE’s Cyber Security and how secure is our system
from being compromised. Bill soid he would ask Robin to do a presentation.

IT Presentation - Robin’s presentation explained that our IT is very secure and that it is monitared
frequently. We do not store sensitive data on our system so hackers are not that “interested” in hacking
us. Robin also talked about the Data Network, Telecommunications Network, Wireless Network, and the
Security software that is used to keep the system secured.

Reports- Discussed the Income Statement that SEMCA provided. Expenses at Januory 31, 2018 was
about 54% of the budget. Expenditures should be at 58%.

Bill provided o budget gmendment that he will propose to the consortium board for appravol. He
explained that an increose in STTF funding and adjustments to other grants, resuited in an increase in
funding. The budget amendment includes carryforward amounts to ensure there will be spending for the
1% quarter (July-Sept 2018). The budget adjustment has a net increase of approximately 1.4 million for
the remaining FY. (Thru June 30, 2018). Marcus and Bill would like the executive board to provide a
recommendation.

CFO Balance Scorecard — Morcus James, the board chair would like the CFO committee to have a focus
on some key issues. He thinks the CFO committee has the charge for Compliance, Finance ond
Operations. He outlined four Actions; 1.Working with SEMCA 2. WIOA performance ohjectives, 3.
Engaging with our One Stop operator, and 4. implementation of performance standards to drive the
success of MWSE and employee satisfoction.



100

CFO dashboard- Lynn provided an example of the Youth Dashboard. He thought the information
presented was very good and would like to see this for other programs.

Meeting was adjourned at 3:30.



101

Southeast Michigen Consortium
Consafldated income Statement
For Period Endlngnuirv 31,2018

Jaruary 2017
January 2038 Actual Arnual Budget - % of Budget

Ravenues ) MTD YTO Revised Expended
Federal Grant 544,804 4,574,514 & 13,053,326 S691%
State Grant 61,590 2,443,389 42.55%
Lozal Grant 5 .
Professional Services - -
Miscallanesus Revenue - 260,00C 21L.05%
Totaf Revenues : 506,3! J55.715 ==
Expenses
Salarles 779,161 3,630,007 5L79%
Fringe Benefits 83,917 1,369,993 43.27%
Contractor Expensas 166,018 1,500,000 52.92%

SEMCA Professional Services 16,342 450,000 S1L51%

Professlonol Fees _1&'_’41 175,000 58.44%
Professional Services 27 083 ﬁﬂﬁ 0.00% .
Travet 7.626 78,000 B1.60%
Conferences . 2n7 92,517 A0.55%
Utikties 10578 77,000 78.68%
Office Supplies 3175 40,000
Insurance 6,248 55,000 TSAIA
Aent/Bullding Costs 46,998 610,000 61.93%
Technology 1958 185,000 40.38%
Repairs/Malintanence B4l4 15,000 161.65%
Meetings 1015 12,000 58.52%
Equipment 693 29,998 24.99%
Bues/Subscription 6,676 70,000 15L22%
Qutreach/Advertising 4,448 75,000 105.23%
Participant Training & Support 286,601 4,832,200 54.66%
Total Expense: 653,726 % 6,081,216 LSERISETIASE 13,756,715 0.00%

Net Income/ {Less) i (a7, $ 201,015 | SRR {o)




102

_ fo $ PETRTIGHR S swwe ¢ (eeenl ¢ g0 foucau s
$ %0070 51| STLTO0Y LESE 3 CITL] Imog
RIS oo e’y GSE'SL'Y 109'93L woddng 3 Supatsy urdpiusg
f, HET SO 000'se us'es - by TuspANIV/Eann0
’ %St 000°0L 31 9¢9' uopdiasans/1eng
L oog'tze %66'HE Be6'ae rLeanz £6 1uawsdynb3
et ..w...... =
- Aonrs, 2009 weses 00028 ezvot 10 spon
I Lt LB org'st %53'151 000'ST EEO'GT vIv'e vanCtu e aeday
T GEREL, BSTEL %oE0y 000'8T wWe'Es o567 Mopuypal
o - wtoee. . A rereee HEET9 000015 LEL'YE eseow s Jupyngfiuay
S mEsy L muse wtrse 000's5 saora wrs  covansy
P TEEMETY Do - EEPST poo'or 171 SLU'E sagddng {10
it umm.mﬁ“.... 09’5y KeTBL 000'2L 260'2S ge6'aT 2N
I TR SR E
T68'vE - 168E %0y L1576 nes've o LT
St e T Ies %0978 0008 62Y'EE 9T9't prany
OO T S R L w070 i) VIOTE B0 TRV (AUl
R R TS 00’541 PIOETE Ve ol Vo3 (EUGTRaj0id
L T ...... |...... ¥ ..
- - OPOYSTT. T eavsTE *I518 00005k . ZvE'Dt OIS |EUDISTI|014 VIS
; L aavemRt . wv/ess NZETS 2007'006°t | eovsea't wioon ot sohaesve)
SEE. . . VANMTS .t - JISTIS xiLwy €56'69E'T | STL'L6E LIE'C6 sujouig 0oy
o9yost - eI L MLE00ST REL'TS LOTULY'E SIT'30L"L Tor'sLr sapees
S I S R B P pa .
WELoal. .~ ITILeIED - SEreivy STLASLET 6909 TeC i VEE 306 Tenuoa M0L
e S Wers oy WIErS WEDTT 000'09L Al SIS - IACEAIH SHOPVERITHN
B i e = C ast, G| stvoe $AAIBS {RUOITRjOIL
L A o 665"y - wes ooy
- T IOBLE. . eI0'ech %552y EBC'ENV'E 3] £85°918°t DS5T2 wen kS
fvez'os) .o TIB'SSENS UeY's NIESS sre'esate PISWLS'Y ¥O8'yr0 WP
NVUUKUG:- | BNIY GG - PN pepusda Py [T o f=p e
e S »aueg wiphggos  -1pag eauiy rensry DEoE Asemiey
m L107 Aoenus|
SIOT "T€ AfnL] JUIpU3 Polivd S04
WaLER IS IO YRR

AT T T T T



Budget Amendment 2

previo usly New Propased
Revenue by Source Approved 9/2017 _|Propased Change IE&um Comments
Waorkforce Innovation and Opportunity Act
Iimmd 20400 prioe-year Funding W
Aduft / Dislocated £2,545,.522 m,sssl sz.ms,3u|w eligible expenses to PATH
Pyojecing Wigher carry forward funds bnta #Y]
Yauth 51,485,776} {Smmo!l $1,375.776201
Adminisuation $320,000 $0 $320
Statewide Activitios-MWSC $266,190 sn.ml sasa,lseluwm-i furnding for thix yeor
Statewide Apprenticeship l ‘ I
Coordinators, $31,250 50 §31,25D
S# National Emergency Grant $300,060 S0} $300,000
America’s Promise Grant| $150,000 so} $150,000
Capadity Buliding $56,716 $0; sss:nsl
Apprenticeship 5tate Accelerator|
Grant| SE, gl 46,
Adult Education] iz i 570, 3
Wagner-Peyser Employment Service
o Tresmd et of 243,048;
$41,401 dad in FY 17 bud ! n
Employment Services] §953,152 $31477 $534,62%| curry-torward
RESEA| €39,203| $32082 71,805 |Racaived ndaitioml afacation
RESEA - Work Based Training| 536,877 50/ 536,877
TAA $209,396{ 541503' szn.mlm slscation grester than sicipsted.
TAA Admin $14,470, sol $16,595]Actual shocatian prester thas antinpated.
Case Management, $101.289| 51!.876' sus,mlmmmpmﬂmmm
Dept. of Health and Human Services _ _
Giore revence wil be avaliable this year due
o highut than stikipated oary forward
PATH [TANF s:,wo.owl $175,000 $4,175,000}komds trora tast year,
PATH / GFGP $386,803) $0| $385,803
PATH Food Asst / Support servica Sm.s-tsl sul $10,945
State Admin Match food $153,237 50 $153,237|
Fam:rCmI s:a.ssoJ tsw.nml ﬂswlnh--mmummmmu Y
I iLast menmaer's expenses wers lower dae bo
Refuges $23,709 $0 524,709 |reduced erwnlimant
Other
Program started they than lichated; mast
Famikies Forwant $200,000 {$150,000} 550,000 cxpraditwres wil oour next yasr.
IMG $68,000{ $15,000 $75,000 [ Recebvud an b tn our slloath
| Agreements with parteety wers not Bnalfred
Infrastnnire Funding Agresmant 50 $100,000 $300,000 |0t the tima the originol budget was prepared
Grants wwanied in Movember; nward wist
higher than budget dot to lncrass Fate
Skilled Trades Tealning $1,800,000, 51,065,887 $2 B6S,BE7 [sppropristion
Groats. swarded in Navemnber; swaid was
highar thas budget due to Incroate soxte
Skitied Trades Adm;l $50,000] 553254 swz.ulwwm
Community Conmections] $15,000] (510, $15,000|sudent ks than anticipatad
{ $13,756,715| $1,373,328 $15,132,228}
Summary
Wi0 £5.531.504 $12,29% 55,543,803
Wagner-Peyser Employment] |
Service S1A434,98 -517,700| $1.568,050
Dept. of Health and Human I
Services $4,505,224 $92,300 $4,811,154
Other| $1,985,000 Kiti 53,409,181
§15,132.228

103

nfaon

n}a



Southeast Michigan Consortium
Line Budge! Amendment 2

104

Annual Budget{ Revised Budget
Revised 9/2017 2/2018 Net Change Comments
| ===
| Expenses
Compensaton Swdy resulied in lower than
than enticnaled pay sdjustments this year;
Sataries and Fringes 5,000,000 4,225,019 {770,381} Tumover higher than projected.
Expensas lower than expected from sorme of
|contractor Expenses 1,900,000 1,857,927 {az.573)[the providers,
SEMCA Professianal Services 450,000 450,000 {oi
Addad slaff davelopmont sorvices which
Cther Professional Fees 175,000 207,260 32,700 |wera nat included In original budgel
Travel 78,000 106,521 28,621 [Travel axpenses higher than projecied
Redassicd some budgoled CoSIs (o othar
Conferences 92.527 53,291 {39,226)fng items.
Utilithes 77,000 99,606 22,606 |Expensas higher than budgetad
Office Supplies 40,000 40,000 0
[insurance 55,000 71,228 16,228 |Exponsos highor than budgated
nexpeciad costs for plopofty thxes and
bullng improvements in Washlenaw Service
Rent/Leasehold Improvemeants 510,000 560,762 50,762 |Cenlar
purchasas oalayed unti nexi budget
Technalogy 185,000 148,859 {36,141} |ysar
Increased costs for snow removal, lawn care,
IRepairs/Maintenence 15,000 65,840 S0,840 |lanttorial services and building repairs
[Mestings 12,000 14,008 2,008 [Expenses higher than budgeted
Equipment 89,938 71,800 {18,198} {Equipment needs lower than anticipatad
ed unanilopated pass-through grant
for Michigan Works! Assodation from tho
Dueac/Subscription 70,000 119,175 45,175 |stats.
Increased marketing axpensos due 1o
recommendations from consultant and
Outreach/Advertising 75,000 80,796 15,796 |increased level of pariner spansarships
{Participant Training, PWE & Support 4,832,200 6,845,054 2,013,894 | Maindy due to increasa in STTF funds
Total Expenscs $ 13,756,715 15,132,228 1,375,513

2/23/2018

i



105

15. New Business — KZ Bolton Consortium Board
a. Workforce Development Board Member Vacancies to Fill
I. Vacancy - Washtenaw County -Business/Private Sector -Swalee
Kulkarni, Executive VP, GDi Info Tech Inc.
Nominee Information.

« Ann Arbor/Ypsilanti Regional Chamber
Shawn Planko, Engineering Manager, Expedia

+ Adrian Area Chamber of Commerce
Naomi Lolley, Owner, IminBiz; Siephanie Dinius, Financial Service
Officer, GreenStone Farm; Pat Deere, Relationship Marketing.
Send Out Cards; Lauri Know, Owner, Knox Accounting & Tax
Service

No nominations received from Jackson Counily Chamber, Hillsdale County
Chamber and Howell County Chamber

li. Vacancy - Washtenaw County, Adult Education/Higher Education-Dr.
Timothy Jackson, Adult Education Maonager, Washtenaw ISD
Nominee Information
» Jackson County ISD; Kevin Schwemmin, Employer Relations
Specialist, Baker College, Jackson
« Mott Community College; Robert Matthews, Assoc. VP Workforce
Development, Mot Community College
¢ Washtenaw Counly iSD; Dr. Rose Bellanca, President, Washtenaw
Communily College {WCC): Allernate/Dr. Michelle Mueller,
WCC, Vice President of Economic, Community & College
Development
No nominafions received from Jackson College, Lenawee ISD, Hillsdaie
ISD, Livingston ISD

ill. Aternates for Workforce Development Board Member

Board Member/Dr. Scott Menzel, Superiniendent, Washtenaw I1SD
Alternate, Dr. Timothy Jackson, Washtenaw ISD, Adult Education Grants
Manager



{c/96) HAOM-SEE
-008-| J2quinu auoydala @adp-|0] | |-1-Z 101p ADiSy uoGIyIIW | HIoMBH 181USD QOr UDDUSIUY 3y} JO Jauling pnold | uobiydiy jo S10)5 aul AQ papoddng | sayiiqosip
Liea SIONEIAIPUL 0f 155Nba) uodn S|GDIIDAD 210 SUCHNPOLIWOIID 130 PUD spI0 Aomxny | woiBoig/ieAodwul Ajunpoddo [pnb3 uo 5t 1SDAUIN0S |90 M UDBIu N

106

860€-LEP-L 1 01 X8) J0 MG HAWPAIIqePE — £)aoyu]a 2138uiy

10) SUOHUUILION |8 PABMI0]
30quiey) [euoiSay HuB|Isd A/ Jogry uy OIDAUIPISA A1 uwiq

Il —.\f jdhﬂauum_m

*SENPIAIPUT JO NS 7 apiacad aseajg 112310 5t uDtjeuuaul
aA0qe oy ‘adpa[mowny] A Jo 153G g1 O) g} AJNID | "PINOE UMLIOSUD)) IUOPHO A ueSga Ay 1seapnos iy Aq [pacsdde puv uolRIaPISUOD 10 S{ENPIAIPUT 3A0GE YY) SiBuIWON Aqasay |

uey) yory puy
JaquiBly)) [euoIBay 0q1y uuy JoGuuuy
nuepsd A Aoqly uuy feipadxy | Suusauidugoyus)d umeys
== ==

L

suotdsay

U

aBuunu

| o | voreqms

ump M A

ssupsng PUMD A Wnaazy uo

__ UBEUMION JO 33Ine5 awusany news | g | ouy | SyiQ 002/03D nejEsupEng PPN SaupuoN

SHIAO'TdAE JOLIDES HLVATId -IWH0A NOLLVNIINON
MAVOd INFINdOTIAHA dDUHOIDNAOM LSVIHLNO0S iSSTIOM NVOIHDIN



BB Planko 248 444.8426 shawn@plankama 2409 Cristina Anne Ct Howell, MI 48855 107

Profile

thave 18 plus years of experience in managing and running eflective teams within the technology sector. | am always looking to
continuously learn and hone my skill sets,

Experience

EXPEDIA - MAY 2011 - PRESENT

Engineering Manager for Mobile App Engagement and site lead for Expedia in Ann Arbor, MI. Dedicated ta ensure the quality of
Expedia's mobile applications. Our applications have been featured by the New York Times, Wall Street Journal, Boston Globe,
Farbes, Washington Past, TechCrunch, USA Taoday, Macworld, PC Magazine and in Apple TV and print ads,

¢ Hire, train, coach, mentor and manage the performance of teams in Ann Arbar.

* Developed a growth plan for the Expedia Ann Arbor office. The office has grown from 8 to 22 employees over the past two years
and we are currently building out the office to double capacity over the next few years.

* Collaborate with QA, development, design, and product teams to ensure weekly releasa schedules are met.

* Run and manage various training courses for the mobile team.

CONSOLIDATED SMARY BROADBAND - MARCH 2006 - MAY 2011

Sr. Network Engineer, monitared and supported data and RF networks in MDU sites with internet and VolP. Responsibilities
included: interaction with internal and external customers ta assist in problem isolation for network issues to software conflicts.
Employee suppart and maintenance of internal IT systems from a server, PC and MAC level. Provided technical training and
troubleshooting documentation for Internet and VolIP support product lines.

» Worked with multiple Local Exchange Carriers in analyzing routing, utilization of T1's, and processing of new service lor use with
our VolP products.
¢ Developed Microsolt Project templates for company property turn-ups.

VERIZON BUSINESS - FEBRUARY 2000 - MARCH 2006

Team Supervisor, responsible far coaching, mentoring, and leading three rotating shifts. Maintained tachnical procedures and
documentation for our group, which led to becoming ISO 9001 centified. Warked closely with other groups to ensure quality
assurance for customers.

» Developed and maintained an incentive program to improve customer satisfaction by proactively monitaring our network.
» Designed and implemented a training program specific to our business unit for new hires and existing employees to improve
their skill sets.

Education
Eastern Michigan University, Ypsilanti, Ml - Bachelor of Business Administration 2004

Skills

» Approach all work activities with deliberate focus to ensure that each task is completed correctly, efiiciently, and effectively.

= Respond and adapt to developing challenges and obstacles when under pressure calmly and logically to develop working
solutions in a timely manner.

= Plan strategically and maintain awareness of attention to details to overcome challenges, meet deadlines and achieve objectives
withaut sacrificing quality.

* High lavels of conlidence when speaking either to groups or individuals that allows the conveyance of ideas or instructions in a
clear, easily understood manner.

» Display a thirst for knowledge, becaming an expert on any product or subject required quickly, and able to convey that
knowledge clearly to athers.

Technical Skills

» Software: Xcode, Android Studio, Microsoft Office, Adobe suite, Wordpress.
» Programming Languages: Swift, Java
* Hardware: Mac, PCs, UNIX

References
Available on request.



108

860£-LEY-L15 01 X¥) Jo EFHIINHI T - f11equia #a3sp

10} SHORQEUTRION [[¥ PavAI0]
._umu.ﬁ_z 2P0

aed amyeuftg
Er1~¢€/-¢ énw_k v :Mw
2212WWe)) JO Jaquieyn) Baly UBLIpY

OID R uapIsa1g ‘zomazsolseg uyo( Jog
"STSRPLATPUE JO SUMSDI § Ip{AI 2983 ] 033100 5] VORWILGIT
940qu 21 ‘o8paporn] AT §0 153q N 0 JEY ATIHOD | PSEOE WNFUOFIOT) U0 M oSN wesos o Aq [eantdde PUY COREIePIVOND 107 STENDIAFPUT GAOQE SN QIFUFKILG AGAI |

226y DA muppy ouaQ
1§ 13030 "M ST8B
RA| RA RA 90JAIDS XB1, Xouwy] Untry
% Sumunoooy Youy]
DN ‘TRsmmao, Sunayieiy
AMH vosIED) 05901 diyjsuonepy
SA N SpIED) INQ puUSg e Ied
17268 IN “TBUpY OO
£TC MD mm.mmﬂm S0IAIRS [eIomIL g
ON T, onojgusslyy | SO onmydalg
mod"3uTd
1226 TN "TBRpY '
15 peaug °§ Loy | PR mmOTS
L3 BIA ziguy | AO00T rEeN
mamg | peEsg
wORET[WRN 10 sascog ARy wug | oy nuup UBIROLEIIGINE SULPATEN HoTwON

SHIAOTINT JOLOTES ALVARId -WH0A NOLLYNIWNON

MIVOH INTWJOTIATA IDHOIHOM LSVAHLNOS ISSTAOM NVOIHOIN




109

Srocasmuw@Asaynisun - Iae)g aSangy

$0) SUOJUUNHOUY J|& pInsLIeg

Ik

asi fiuno) uosyoef .Eu%_..u ng ‘“4a[xQ =\_>uu~

1-1-L Juiwp Ay

ajqepTAT JNAIAG QL “SINN|IQUSIP (im S[ERpLAIpE 0 15anbas bodn JjquiiEAr SI21A128 PIE SpIC Loy akoidwgaueforg Awmpoddg owdojdw pnbg e st jspom L O

2NET]

ameus

\Wx.\

1331103 51 UOJICULIOJU) SA0GE 24} OFpapmony Aw J0 159 O 0F 1oy AJUD3 | pICOf MDA QUICPHIOM ISEAINOS [SPOM neSuympg o) S0 S{SNPIAIPUL 2A0@ DY) ANEUIUOY AGIIAY |

asior

p3 1oudiy

nosyoer
aflaqon sajeg

15! j8100dg suoie|ay Jedojdug
LIULIBAW| IS AR

HONCUILON O 321008

slcwany

unepg
sgdigpRINg ey

ey Saady

ANLLUTY 3N

NOLLVDNAd YHHOIH/NOILYONAT L1NdV -IWHOA NOLLYNIAON
TIVOd INTNdOTIATA IDHOANFOM iSHIOM NVITHDIN




110
Kevin J. Schwemmin

901 Oakridge Dr. Cell: (517)902-1428
Jackson, MI 49203 Email: kevin.schwemmin@gmail.com
Education

Ph.D. (anticipated 2020) Central Michigan University. Higher Education Leadership
M.Ed. (2002) Grand Valley State University. Adult and Higher Education — College Student Affairs Leadership
B.A. (2000) Ceniral Michigan University. History

Professional Experience

Employer Relations Specinlist
Carcer Services, Baker College of Jackson, Jackson, M1, September 2013-present
» Develop and maintain relationships with lacal businesses in order to provide quality intemship and employment
opportunities for Baker College students and graduates
» Provide job search assistance for students and graduates, including resume reviews, mock interviews, and job search
workshops
» Developed and implemented a staff volunteer initiative to aflow full-time and part-time staff to volunteer up to two
hours per month during regular work hours; staff contributed 276 hours of service in the first year
Produce graduate employment reports on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis
Represent Baker College at community mectings, events, and fundraisers, including Jackson County Chamber of
Commerce and United Way of Jackson County
s  Supervised the performance of a coordinator and an edministrative assistant

Learning Community Coordinator
Center for Learning and Student Success, Florida Atlantic University, Boca Raton, FL, September 20 3-April 2015
s Recruited first-year students to participate in the Leaming Community program through face-lo-face interactions at
campus admissions ¢vents and the use of print and web marketing materials
e Developed training curriculum end facilitated development sessions to educate Learning Community Liaisons (peer
mentors) about effective mentoring techniques and university resources
e Developed and coordinated co-curricular programs to complement the academic components of the leaming
community program
»  Supported faculty in the development and implementation of new leaming communitics through onc-on-one
consultations and waorkshops

Coordinator of Student Engagement
Officc of Student Life, Southern Polytechnic State University, Marietta, GA, October 2012-August 2013
e Crecated and coordinated a comprehensive service and leadership development program for students
s Decveloped, maintained, and strengthened relationships with community partner organizations in the non-profit,
governmental, and cducation sectors
Coordinated, planned, and implemented annuat university-wide scrvice and philanthropy events
Implemented, administered, and maintained the university's newly crealed co-curricular transcript

Service Learning Coordinator
Atlanta Center for Civic Engagement and Service Leaming, Georgia Perimeter College, Clarkston, GA, February 201 1-August 2012
o Directed the Service Learning Faculty Fellows program, a year-long faculty development program designed to help
faculty modify an cxisting course to include a service leaming component utilizing best practices
Designed faculty development opportunities for faculty interested in service leaming
Developed, maintained, and strengthened relationships with community partner organizations in the non-profit,
governmenial, and education seclors
s Directed large-scale community service events, including MLK Day of Service, Global Youth Service Day, and 9/11
Day of Service and Remembrance
e Managed Atlanta Center's $17,000 Student Activity Fee budget



111

Kevin J. Schwemimin 2

Senior Student Services Coordinator

Center for Service-Learning and Civic Engagement, Michigan State University, East Lansing, Ml, January 2009-January 2011
Student Services Coordinator

Center for Service-Leaming and Civic Engagement, Michigan State University, East Lansing, MI, August 2006-January 2009

Oversaw the MSU Altemative Spring Break program, including budget management (approx. $200,000), travel
logistics for domestic and international destinations, risk management, and leadership development of student
executive board members and site leaders

Provided leadership training for student exccutive board members as the advisor to Into the Streets, Volunteer Income
Tax Assistance, and Spartans for Financial Literacy

Supervised and evaluated the performance of one graduate assistant

Conducted service-leaming presentations and orienlations for classrooms and campus groups

Represented MSU on the Tri-County Asset Independence Coalition, Mid-Michigan Volunteer Organizations Active in
Disaster, and the Michigan Campus Compact Community Service Disectors committee

Director of Student Activities
Office of Student Activitics, Adrian College, Adrian, MI, July 2002-August 2006

Planned and implemented campus entertainment, including contract negotiation, s the advisor to Campus Aclivitics
Network

Advised Adrian College Dance Marathon, including supervision of fundraising cfforts, exccution of event logistics, and
leadership and personal development of student executive board members

Planned and coordinated a comprehensive student volunteerism and community service program; served as College's
lisison with Michigan Campus Compact and the Lenawee United Way and Volunieer Center

Collaborated with various departments o coordinale summer orientation and fall welcome week programs for new
students, including budget management, communication with facilitics, and facilitation of activities

Supervised and evaluated the performance of a secretary, an AmeriCorps*VISTA, student assistants, and student
oricntation leaders

Managed programming and office budgets totaling $55,000

Teaching

nstructor, SOC 211: Service Learning Project. Baker College of Jackson, Winter 2016
Instructor, Professional Career Strategies. Baker College of Jackson, Winter 2016-Summer 2017
Instructor, Learning Strategies and Human Development. Florida Atlantic University, Fall 2014
Instructor, /ntroduction to the College Experience. Adrian College, 2002-2004

Instructor, £S 100: Freshman Seminar. Grand Valley State University, 2000-2001

Community Involvement

Jackson County Chamber of Commerce Economic Events Committee, member, September 2017-present
United Way of Jackson County, Community Solutions Team Grant Reviewer, December 201 6-present
Energizing Education, Reading Mentor, November 2016-present

Challenge Day, Adult Facilitator, November 2016-present

United Way of Jackson County, Campaign Cabinet Education Co-Chair, July 20/6-present

Lansing Westside Commercial Association Organization Committee, member, dugust 2009-January 2011

Professional Associations

South Central Human Resources Management Association, member, September 2017-present
American College Personnel Association, member, July 2007-present
National Association for Campus Activities, member, July 2002-July 2006

Mid America Regional Volunteer Development Coordinator, May 2005-May 2006
Mid America Regional Awards Coordinator, Jitne 2004-May 2005
2003 Mid America Regional Conference Community Service Project Coordinatar, e 2003-November 2003

Phi Kappa Phi, member, March 2002



112

t-1-2 Suyup L4 apqeiicae

2214135 QJCLL "SAMIQUSIP Yitn S{ERPIAIRUL O 1sanhiaa uodn 2jqupEAE Saajalas pua spie SIeINnY Jaiopdurzwefiong Hunuoddo wanAopthuzy jenbzf ue 5§ SYIOM uefiyM

Fanasmwgiitayepw — Haayngg Nd3v
t0] St uuLDY Jie __._amﬁw_.*ou Auntwos) O 1UaPISId . %Oaﬁﬁm panag g

8/ \ bl \ IS ea ARl 755 aanicudis

132090 S1 UOHUERLIOJUL dAaye a1 ‘TP mouY S Ju 1539 21 o1 18y £)1u23 | "pIcog) 1UAWG0[IANQ DOJHOM 1SEHINOS (SYIOM ueSIy31gy aYs 10] STHPIAIPUT 2A0GE 3Y) JiEtion £qas9y |

ad
NOILMI3 ANiyorigns WY mﬁg

35309 MLINMWWOD LIoN U N 9055y ‘SNIV LN 113908
waiEan]
HMEETALLON JO X3 HENSAY soygdg pamednq] ynpye muep Aouady EETEESLNELLI AN

NOILVINQd dAHOIH/NOLLYDNAY LINAY -WdO4 NOLLVNINON
@QAVOg INTWIOTTATA ADUOANUOM iSHIOM NVIIHOIW



113

Robert Matthews, MPA
1401 Columbia Drive
Flint, Ml 48503
Home: 810-233-6675 Cellular; 810-577-6563

Email: robert.matthews@mcc,edu

Profile

Qver twenty years of experience in higher education providing
leadership for programs and services designed to improve outcomes
for employers and students.

Over fifteen years experience in the administration of employment and
training programs, including pre-college and student success
programs, cusriculum and grants development and management,
Worked to secure in excess of $40M in external resources to provide
access and success sefvices and the creation of career pathways for
non-traditional and diverse student populations.

Strong team and relationship building and maintenance skills.
Excellent written and oral communication skills.

Effective leader; able to organize, prioritize, delegate, and evaluate.
Strong analytical and problem-solving skills.

Relavant Experience & Skills

Planning, Developing, Executing, and Evaluating Programs and Services
Formuiated and achieved short and long-range goals and objectives
consistent with the College's strategic plans

Evaluated labor market data to help assess evolving and emerging
training needs and changes in higher education, and managed enroliment
in workforce development programs while and identifying new revenue
streams for the institution

Developed target marketing efforts addressing the changing environment
of the workplace and skills required for high-wage, high-skill, and high-
demand occupations

Developed and maintained annual operating budgets in excess of $10M
million in several areas of responsibility to ensure that programmatic goals

were exceeded or met while staying within the College's resource

constraints and cost-recovery requirements

Employed program reviews, evaluations, and other assessment measures
to identify programs that should be modified, added or terminated, while
ensuring continuous improvement

Oversaw facilities usage, equipment safekeeping and maintenance, and
troubleshooting processes to ensure physical resources matched program
needs, and prevented technical and operational difficulties

Directed and coordinated the preparation of recurring and special reports
for the College administration, Board of Trustees, state and federal
agencies as required or requested



Created models and frameworks for career pathways at MCC that are
replicable, and served as a lead college representative on local, state, and
nationai initiatives such as The “Breaking Through" Initiative, The
American Association of Community Colleges — Center for Workforce and
Economic Development project, and the state of Michigan's “No Worker
Left Behind" Implementation team in addition to youth entrepreneurship,
employment, and other pre-college programs

Workforce, Community, and Economic Development

Guided the establishment and expansion of the MCC Workforce
Development Division

Developed the organizational and operational plan for the MCC Waorkforce
Education Center and Community Technology Centers

Established relationships with K-12 districts to implement pre-college
programs, promote a “college going” culture, and to re-engage high school
drop outs

Assisted with the development of and chaired the Genesee County Tax
and Financial Services Coalilion

Guided the formation of the non-profit status designation for two partner
organizations

Managed federal, state, and foundation funded grants and programs
retated to Mott Community College’s community, economic and workforce
development initiatives which included programs funded by the City of
Flint, State of Michigan, U.S Departments of Labor, Commerce, Housing
and Urban Development, and Education, and private foundations

Worked with employers, community members, grant representatives and
college administrators to identify and address the community's education
and training needs

Developed and maintained community relationships in order to enable
current and future students to reach their training, educationa) and/or
employment goals

Designed presentations and written communications to be used in
marketing promotions

Represented the College at various events in order to promote Workforce,
Community and Economic Development

Established a networking relationship with other service providers in order
to obtain referrals

Grants Development and Management

Provided leadership for the Grants Depariment

Assisted with the development of granl applications and program/project
curriculum design for several workfarce, community, and economic
development initiatives

Ensured appropriate documeantation was processed and maintained for
each grant, and prepared reports lo ensure continued funding

114



Monitored progress of programs to ensure goals and objectives were met
Administered and tracked budgetary expenses for the programs

Served as a liaison between Mott Community College and the grant-
funding agencies on matters relating to the program services, goals, and
outcomes

Coordinated the activities of Advisory Commitiees

In cooperation with Project Reviewers/Evaluators, developed methods for
tracking the use of the programs by the community and established
outcomes

Developed plans for sustainability and/or institutionalization of various
elements of successful grant program designs

Operations

Provided leadership for a team of managers, directors, and administrators
that supervise nearly 50 staff members, consultants, and interns and
monitor the daily operations of the Workforce Education, Three
Community Technology, MCC's Genesee and Shiawassee Service
Center, the Student Employment Center, the Leaming Center, and the
Grants Development depariment.

Developed standard operational policies for the programs with advice
from the Advisory Committees

Purchased equipment and supplies to ensure the necessary tools were
provided to staff and participants

Communicated operational needs to appropriate Mott Community College
or grant-funding representatives

Approved hiring, termination, contractual, and procurement
recommendations for a division of the college

Human Resources Planning and Development

Established and communicated program goals to appropriate staff
members to ensure success in meeting goals and established outcomes
Management representative in the Joinl Union Management Program
(JUMP) and in labor union contract negoliations

Supervised both union and non-union managers, directors, program
coordinators, and other support staff

Created an organizational structure and culture conducive to effective
custorner service

Conducted staff training, promoted professional development, and career
growth opportunities for stafi

Reviewed team work schedules and monitored milestones and deadlines,
and prioritized work assignments to ensure deadlines were met
Monitored employees’ work performance, conducled performance
evaluation interviews, and coached employees, as necessary, regarding
work performance

115



116

= In conjunction with Human Resources, established position requirements
and job descriptions, and assisted with the recruitment, hiring, and
termination of personnel

» Supervised teams of various sizes in multiple/remote locations

Work History

Mot Community College — Flint, Mi

Associate Vice President, Workforce & Economic Development  2016-present
Execulive Dean, Workforce, Community & Grant Development 2012-2016

Execulive Dean, Workforce & Career Development 2009-2012
Director, Workforce Development 2002-2008
Program Director, Community Technology Centers 1998-2002
Student Employment Coordinator 1997-19989
Admissions Recruiter 1997

treet Village Communit velopment 1996-1997

Corporatlion — Flint, Ml
Neighborhood Planner

Flint Communily Schools — Flint, Ml 19984-1996
Substitute Teacher

University of Michigan-Flint - Flint, MI 1992-1984
Administrative Assistant

African American Studies Program

Education

Candidate, Doctor of Education

Educational Leadership

The University of Michigan-Flint, 2013 - present

Master of Public Administration

Thesis; “Privatization of services in the city of Flint, Michigan: a feasibility stu
Rackham School of Graduate Studies

University of Michigan-Flint, 2002

Bachelor of Arts, Soclal Sciences and African American Studies
University of Michigan-Flint, 1991

Associale in Science
Certificate of Achievement in Mathemalics
Mott Community College, 1988

References: Available Upon request



117

1-1-L Sutjeip Aq ojqepiean
331195 (L "SONIMESIP Ipiam sjunplatpus o) jsanbai uodn sjqeiear saaralas pue spre Aseyjixny  1akojdwzauwsdord AnunpeddQ yuawdojdiny enb3 we sy ;304 URBROIN

faorasmu @Ay 1ayug i — A)Jays(g 33de
10) SUOJBIANONL |8 PABMIO]

AS1 L1uno) mBUINSEAY ‘FUSpUAUNAING ‘|AZUSN W0IS 3
AT Jreq amjpudig

Iy

321309 51 UONBULIONU) 9A0qE U] ‘3Tpapmotn] AW J0 153q A O Vet AJ1uad [ pueog 1awdo[aas( SOPIOA 1SBHNINOS (D{IoM URSIydIN 3u) J0] S|EnpiAipUl 9A0qQE ) Jjeuiuon Aqasay |

uohieonpyq afa[j0)
Joyg1H Ajunwwoyy Juapisald
AS] mBuaySEA Ia[[anIA] PRI I X/ MBUAYSB eoun[jog 950y Id
uonwonp
UOIIEUIION] JO S2INDG awwa)y | mydiguoneanpg yopy aweN Aualy LRI bjoN

NOILVINAd YHHOIH/NOILYVINAH L'INAYV -IWdO0Jd NOILVNDAON
@AVOd INTNdOTIATA FOHOITIOM iSSTHOM NVOIIHOIN



118

Dr. Rose B. Bellanca, Ed.D

Executive Summary

A highly energetic, committed and visionary educational and business leader and an advocate for parinerships and
innovative programs that provide education, enrichment, and economic development with executive leadership
experience in higher education, K-12, and business and industry. Successfully led comprehensive colleges and a
university campus and excels in strategic planning and implementation, public and private fund raising, personnel and
|labor relations, leadership and team development, public and community relations, and teaching, leaming pedagogy
and curriculum development with a focus on student success, retention and persistence.

Experiences include working with higher education institutions in China, Germany, Guatemala, Canada and Qatar and
a partnership with the World Trade Center, Palm Beach County resulting to their relocation to the Northwood University
Florida Campus.

Led seven successful public millage campaigns and has raised millions of dollars in private fund raising, most recenlly
raising more than $15M in scholarships and grants, including a successful $8.5M private fund raising campaign within
a twenty month period. In August, 2016, passed a ten year, $12.5M millage renewal, with 70.4% voter approval.
Maintained steady college enrofment during a period of national decline and implemented innovations in teaching and
sludent services to proactively respond to the disruptive forces in higher education.

The college partnership recently negotiated with the United Assaciation of Plumbers, Pipefitters and Sprinkier fitters
and the Intemalional Association of Bridge-Structural, Omamental and Reinforcing Ironworkers resulted in an annual
economic impact of approximately $12M for the Ann Arbor and Ypsitanti region.

Passionale about teaching, student leaming, professional development, organizational growth with a focus on the
needs of the student, community and/or client,

Executive Experience

College President and CEO
Washienaw Community College, Ann Arbor, Michigan
2011-Present

University Provost and Campus CEO
Northwood University, West Palm Beach, Florida
2008-2011

College President and CEQ
St. Clair Community College, Port Huron, Michigan
2002-2008

Provost and Chief Academic Officer
Macomb Community College, Warren, Michigan
1998-2002

Vice President for Planning and Development (public relations and fund raising} and Assistant to the President
Macomb Community College, Warren, Michigan
1996-1998

1|Page



Executive Director of Strategic Planning, Professionat Development and Community and Public Relations
Chippewa Valley Schools, Clinton Township, Michigan
1994-1996

Executive Director of Personrnel and Labor Relaticns
Chippewa Vallsy Schools, Clinton Township, Michigan
1992-1994

Execulive Director of Technology, Vocational-Technical Education, Adult and Continuing Education
Chippewa Valley Schools, Clinton Township, Michigan
1989-1992

Business Owner and CEQ

Countree Garden Nursery and Garden Center, Romeo, Michigan
Organizational Design and Development, Ltd., Michigan
RJB Rental Properties

College and University Teaching Experience

Wayne State University
Northwood University
Macomb Community College

EDUCATION

Doctor of Education
Wayne State University
MaJor: Administration and Organizational Studies
Minor: Vocational-Technical Education
Areas of concentration: Leadership and Organizational Development, Personnel,

Curviculum and Public Relations

Educational Specialist
Wayne State University
Major; Administration and Supervision

Research Emphasis: Staff Development

Master of Education

2]Page

119



Wayne Slate University
Major: Industrial Arts

Bachelor of Science
Wayne State University
Major: Family Life Education

Minor: Social Science

Associate of Applied Arts
Macomb Community College

Certifications
Secondary School Administrative Certification
Central Office Administration

Additional Training
Executive Coaching, University of Miami

Systems Analysis - Flowcharting, Michigan State University
Deming: Total Quality Management Training, Ford Motor Company
Certification Program in Strategic Planning, AASA National Academy for Executives
Outcome Based Education Summer Institute, SEMCOBE
Michigan Negotliatars Labor Relations Academy
Instructional Theory into Praclice
Marketing Strategy, The Leaming Resources Network

Preseniations and Publications

“Region 9: Connected Vision, Connecled Education, Connected Workforce,” Govemor's Economic and Education
Summit, Detroit, Michigan, March 3, 2015

"Cultivating Leaders for the Future,” American Association of Community Colleges, 2014

3|Page

120



121

*Partnering with K-12 to Implement Cradle to Career Education,” American Association of Community College
Trustees Leadership Congress, Seattle, Washington, 2013

Education, Innovation, Quality and Harmonious Scciety; The Bth China Intemational Forum on Education; Jinglun
Hotel, Beljing, China. October, 2007

“The Strategic Pfanning Voyage: Fostering Innovative Opportunities While Reducing Cost Structures,” ACCT
Govemance Leadership Institute, San Diego, Califomta, 2007.

Bellanca, R, “Responding To Rapid Envirenmental Change,” Bellwether Finalist, February 1889 Futures Confersnce,
Oriando, Florida

“Responding To Rapid Environmental Change,” Michigan Community College Association Conference, Traverse
City, Michigan, July 1998

*Responding To Rapid Environmental Change,” American Association Community Colleges Convention, Miami,
Florida, April 1998

Larenzo, A. and Bellanca R. "Responding To Rapid Environmental Change,” Institute For Future Studies Publication,
1998

Bellanca R, “The Dance Has Just Begun..." The Strategic Planner, fall 1999
Editor of On The Record, distribution 140,000 households
Editor of the CV VOICE, distribution 32,000 households

Board Affiiations

Board Member, West Palm Beach Education Advisory Commitlee County Economic Council
Board Member, Palm Beach Counly Education Commission

Board Member, World Advisory Council

Economic Council of Palm Beach, member

Executive Women of the Palm Beaches, member

Chamber of Commerce of the Palm Beaches, member

000000

Michigan

o

Ann Arbor Spark, Executive Committee [cument)

Square One Education Network (cumant)

Southeast Michigan Council of Government’s Economic Development Tasldorce and Education
Reform Taskforce {cumment)

Waorkforce Intelligence Network (current}

Ann Arbor Area Community Foundatiar (recent past board member}

Michigan Reglon 9 Prosperity Initlative, chair of the talant council (completed scope of work)
Executive Board Member, Ecanomic Development Alliance of St. Clair County

Board Member, Community Foundation of St. Clair County

Board Member, Port Huron Dawnlown Development Authonty

Board Member, Studio 1219

Board Member, Port Huron Chamber of Commerce

Mission Services/Performance Commitiee of the Board of Trinily Mercy Hospilal, Port Huron
Board Member, Melropolilan Detroit Bureau of Schoot Studies Inc.

Foundation Board Member, Aulomation Alley, Oakiand Counly

0 0

0000000 O0OCO0O0GCGO

4|Page



National

G 0o 0O0 0

o]

122

Board Member, North Cenlral Accreditation Assaciation, College Advisory Posilion

Board Member, St. Clair Counly Regional Educational Service Agency, Health Occupations (Board Secretary
and Treasurer)

Board of Directors, Henry Ford Health System, Northeas! Region (1995-2006),

Association of Community Coliage Trusteas, Committee Chair of the Advisory Committee of
Prasidents {current)

American Assaciation of Community Colleges, Marksting and Communications Board (current)
American Assoclation of Community College Presidential Advisory on China (current)

Board Member, Uniled Stales of America Seleclive Service, 1993-2003, Past Chair

American Association of Community College’s Commission on Economic and Workforce Development (2004-
2007)

American Association of Community Colleges, Certification Commission (2007-2008)

Awards of Recognition

2017 Outstanding Service In Workforce Development - Michigan Works!Southeast
2016 Mary McLeod Bethune Award - YpsilantiWillow Run Branch of the NAACP
2016 Pacesetter Of The Year Award — National Council for Marketing & Public Relations

WJR AM-760 News/Talk Women Who Lead Award - Class of 2016
Emerging Leadership American Association of Community Colleges Award of Excellence, Finalist 2014

American Assaciation of Community College Truslees Central Regional Equity Award, shared with the Board of Trusiees, 2013

State of Michigan House and Senale Legislalive Tribute(s) for Community t.eadership in the area of education
2001 Halian Woman of the Year, Columbus Day Committee, Southweslem, Michigan
1998 Woman of Distinction Award, the Girl Scouts of America, Macomb County, Michigan

1990 Significanl Confributions and Support lo Technology Education Award
1989 Adult Education Service and Leadership Award

SJ]Page



123

1-1-L dmymp Aq 2jqu[ImaT

AIAIIS QAL “SOM{IGESIP Tt S|ENpIATPUL O] 15anbai uodn a1qe[ieAr S301AL3S pur spi ASBIIXnY “1akojdwzmeTory Anunpoddg wawdojdwg jenb3 ue 51 js}i0M vedyaIN

Laovasmw w&jragqeu — (a3ys] 4338

10} SUOHBUTLION {8 PIEMI0Y

ASim “Yuapuajuiiadng ‘PZUI oG

g

amieudig

v lad

1231105 S| UOLBILIOJUT IAGGE 21} *2Fpaymotry Aw Jo 153q 31 01 18 KJ1Lad | paeog Wado[aaa( 3OO, ISEIINOS {SHHOM UDTIYIA 3 J0F S|BAPIAIPUL 2A0QE 2]} dleultuOU Agaiay |

asim

Iafnuey
SjuBID uonEdNpy NPy
‘uosyjoe Aijowt ], "I

S]] MBUYSEAN

juapusjupadng ‘[PZUIA O3S Id

UDNBLHUON JU UROS

ouIapy

uayeanpy
sydijuonsanpg epy

awop Aoy

INLLAUTH] IUPION

NOILLVONAd YEHOIH/NOILYINAE LINAV -Wd04 NOLLYNINON

MIVOd INTNdOTIATA ADIODTIOM iSXHOM NVIIHOIN

HLVNYALTV



